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. Background
The record shows that ofiATUSE 1273 .. tle,President of American Federation of Government

Employees (AFGE), Local 408, Batame aware that ning unit members represented by his local were being
adversely affected by new outside hospital overtime procedures implemented by management at the Federal
Correctional Complex (FCC), Butner, North Carolina. Accordingly, on August 13, 2013, Mr. Little made a written
request to FCC Butners Complex Warden, Mr. Craig Apker, in an attempt at informal resolution of the problem.’

Apker, violated Title 5, USC, 7116; the parties’ Master Agresment, Articles six and eighteen; as well as, the Back
Pay Act, 5 USC 5586 - outlined specifics regarding the alleged violations, beginning on or about August 20, 2013,
and continuing since that date — and, requested a list of remedies. By letter dated September 20, 2013, the
Agency, through Federal Bureau of Prisan's Mid-Atlantic Regional Director, Mr. C. Eichenlaub, denied the
grievance®; and, on September 25, 2013, AFGE, Lacal 408 invoked its right to arbitration.?

Il. Procedural Matters.

By letter dated January 5, 201 5, the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) informed the undersigned

that the partles identified above-had salected him, and FMCS was appointing him, to hear and decide an overtime
grievance identified as FMCS case number 14-50738-8.5

Following a series of emalil and telephonic communications; by letters dated January 23, 2015, the Arbitrator
informed the parties that he accepted their appointment, outlined the basic procedures to be followed, confirmed
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hearing to commence immediately at the conclusion of the administrative conference. The hear{ng scheduling
letter also requested that the parties provide the Arbitrator with a copy of the parties’ collective bargaining
agreement together with any amendments and/or memorandums of understanding, as well as, the grievance file.

The parties were also provided an opportunity to file pre-hearing briefs, and informed when they should exchange
witness lists.

At 8:30AM, Tuasday, August 4 the Arbitrator held an administrative conference with the parties to discuss, among
other things, the purpose of the hearing; hearing procedures, including attendance and the handling of witnesses;
the recording of the hearing; and any stipulations reached. As to the parties’ collective bargaining agreement
(CBA), at the beginning of the administrative conference the Arbitrator acknowledged receipt of the Union's pre-
hearing submissicns, including an electronic copy of an untitled, unsigned, undated forty-eight page document
identified as the parties’ Master Labor Agreement (MLA) [Hereafter referred to as simply the Master Agreement or
MA]. Then, the parties provided a signed/dated hard copy of a document also identified as the Master Agreement
(MA) between the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), Federal Bureau of Prisons (FBOP) and the American
Federation of Govemment Employees (AFGE), AFL-CIO, Council of Prison Locals, executed February 6, 1998, for
the period March 9, 1988, through March 8, 2001.° A cursory review of both documents revealed minor differences
between the document provided by the Union in its pre-hearing submissions and the hard copy document provided
at the administrative conference. Accordingly, the parties stipulated that the hard copy document provided was a
true and official copy of the parties’ MA that was in effect during the total period of time associated with the subject
grievance; and, that the agreement had been properly extended since close of the initial period of effect on March
8, 2001, until the execution of the parties’ current MA on May 28, 2014.”

Article 32 of the MA addresses arbitration, and provides in part as follows, in:
» Sections a-c, how arbitration is to be invoked and the arbitrator selected;

o Section d, that the arbitrator's fees and all expenses of the arbitration (with exceptions as noted)

are to be borne equally by the parties and that the Employer is to determine the location of the
hearing;

¢ Section e, that the hearing will be held during regular day shift hours, the grievant's witnesses
and representatives will be on cfficial time, the Union is entitted to the same number of
representatives as the Agency, and the Union is entitled to have one observer;

» Section f, how and when witness lists are to be exchanged;

e Section g, that the arbitrator shall be requested to render a decision as quickly as possible, but in

any event no later than thirty calendar days after conclusion of the hearing, unless the parties
mutually agree to extend the time limit:

* Section h, that the arbitrator's award shall be binding on the parties and the arbitrator shall have

no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter, or modify any of the terms of the agreement or
published FBOP policies and regulations; and

e Section i, that a verbatim trenscript of the hearing will be made when requested by either party
and how the costs are to be handled.

Otherwise, the MA is silent regarding hearing procedures and the Arbitrator's powers. Accordingly, when asked if
the parties were, in any way, restricting the Arbitrator's powers to determine and define the issue or issues
presented in the hearing; and, through the evidence presented at hearing, to decide the matter, the Counsels for
both parties said they were not restricting the Arbitrator in any way.? With regard to attendance at the hearing, the
parties agreed that witnesses would not be allowad to be in the hearing, except when testifying; and, that.each side
would be permitted to have one technical assistant attend the hearing® In accordance with the MA, the parties
agreed and arrenged for a verbatim transcript of the hearing. After discussing streamlining measures, rules of
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evidence, post-heering briefs, and when the parties could expact the written decision and award'®; and determining
that no aother matters neaded to be covered, the administrative conference was adjourned at 9:10AM, and the
hearing on the matter convened at 9:25AM, Tuesday, August 4, 2015,

At the beginning of the hearing, the Arbitrator asked both parties to introduce themselves and their technical
representatives; explained the various exhibit lists being. maintatned". and entered into the record the initial three
(3) exhibits identified as Arbitrator/Joint exhibits; explained all previous communications with the parties, including
any dealings with the parties during his thirty-plus years Federal service; and, asked the parfies if they had any
concerns or issues regarding his ability to conduct a fair and impartial hearing on the matter before him - To which
both parties answered they had no abjection.’ Following opening statements the hearing then proceeded In an
orderly manner." A total of eight witnesses.testified under cath as administered by the Arbitrator'*,

The Agency’s advocate and Counsel, as well as, the Gﬁevang's advocate and Counsel, fully and fairly represented
their respective party. While the hearing record was open, and/or subsequently as requested by the Arbitrator, a
total of ten (10) Arbitrator/Joint exhibits, comprising over 1,004 pages of documentation were offered and accepted
into the record; six (6) Agency/Employer exhibits comprising over 730 pages of documentation offered and
accepted; and thirty-eight (38) Uniori/Grievant exhibits comprising over 1,466 pages of documentation offered and
accepted. As discussed during the administrative conference, at the close of tesﬁmony the Arbitrator mquested
post-hearing briefs from both sides. Both Counsels reserved their closing for their post-hearing brief. In closing
both parties were asked if they feit they had the opportunity to present thelr case as they wanted'to preserit it and
had presented all the evidence they wanted to p » &nd both Counsels answered In the affimative.” Following

receipt of the post-hearing briefs and rebuttal briefs, the hearing record was closed at 8:00AM, Thursday, April 7,
2016.

Accordingly, the undersigned Arbitrator acknowledges the position of the Parties; that the matter is properly before
him in accordance with the appropriate provisions of law, regulations, and the parties’ MA; that he is solely
responsibls to hear and determine the issues; and to render a written decision and award, in accordance with the
parties’ MA, FMCS policies, and State and Federal law.

To this end, the undersigned has thoroughly reviewed the evidsnce presented in pre-hearing submissions, through
testimony’® and exhibits offered/accepted at hearing; and, through posthearing briefs, rebuttals, and clarifying
information submitted by the parties. The Arbitrator does not fesl compelled to address all of the numerous
arguments and igsues raised by the advocates. Howaever, please do net interpret this to mean that the Arbitrator
has not read and reread the parties’ briefs, rebuttals, and citations included in the some 3,142 pages of
documentation submitted as evidence; as well es, thoroughly read and studied some 682 pages of testimony
presented in four days of hearings; and carefully considered alf arguments by the advocates. Rather, the Arbitrator
elects to addreas only those elements that have a significant impact on his decision-making process. The .

Arbitrator, as a general rule, will not comment on matters that he believes are irrelevant, superfiuous, redundant, or
rendered moot by his decision.

ll. Statement of the Issus(s).
Article 32, Section a, of the parties’ MA provides, in part;

“In order, to invoke arbitration, the party seeking to have an issus submitted to arbitration must
notify the other paltrty in writing of this intent prior to expiration of any applicable time limit. The

a statement of the issues involved, the alleged violations, and
8 D agree ucuﬁ ion of the issua(s) for arbi

BAC 08l submit a separate subm) 8sion and the dfbiifrator sheil determina-th or
i ird, However, thd'issues, the alleged vilations, and the remedy requested in the

writteﬁ grievance'may be modified only by mutual agreement.” [Emphasis added]

A review of the subject grievance clearly shows that it was filed by Mr. Little, in his capacity as President of AFGE,
Local 408, on behalf of all bargaining unit employees that his Lacal represents. Furthermore, the grievance plainly
provides that the matter grieved involved acts or actions of the Complex Warden at the Butner FCC relating to a
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change in “Overtime Hiring Procedures” being used to grant and assign overtime — Which, in the view of the Local,
violated Federal law and the parties’ Master Agreement; and, resuited in bargaining unit employess, represented
by Local 408, being skipped over on overtime rosters and not assigned/granted overtime; therefore, being treated

the Council of Prison Locals, Local 408, and the Butner Federal Correctional Complex regarding bvertigna
procedures; and both parties conicurred with that determination, ' Additionally, neither party offered in pre-hearing
submissions or at the administrative conference a stipulated statement of the issue or issues to be addressed at
the hearing.

However, at the administrative conference the Agency did raise threshald issues regarding the arbitrability of the
grievance; maintaining that the grievance was precluded by a previously filed unfair labor practice (ULP), was
untimely filed, and filed with the wrong Agency official,

In their post-hearing briefs, both parties offered their statement of the issues to be heard and decided, The
Agency provided that the issues are:

(1) Did the Union's previously filed unfair iabor practice (ULP)* bar the instant grievance?
(2) Was the Union's grievance untimely filed?
(3) Was the Union's grievance filed with the wrong office?

(4) Did management violate the Master Agreement, Article 18, Section p17? And, if so, what
should be the remady?

The Union provided that the issues are;
(1) Whether the grievance was untimely filed?

(2) Whether tge fling of the unfair labor practice (ULP) bars Local 408 to pursue the captioned
grievance'

(3) Whether the grievance was erroneously filed with the Regional Director?

(4) Whether the Agency violated Article 18 (p) of the MA when it implemented the new MOU
between the Agency and Locals 405 and 3696 allowing the cther Locals to recsive overtime
without giving first consideration to employees of Local 4087

(5) Whether the Agency violated the MA when it granted overtime to non-bargaining unit GS-12
employees?

(6) Whether the Agency owes back pay to bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408
for skipping over them when assigning overtime as a result of the MOU entered with Locals
405 and 36967 And,

(7) Whether the Agency should be ordered to pay attoney’s fees under the Back Pay Act?
Since the parties failed to submit a joint stipulated statement of the issue(s) to be heard and decided, in
accordance with the provisions of Article 32, Section a of the parties’ agreement, the Arbitrator describes the
issue(s) to be heard and decided as follows:
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Is the subject grisvance bamed by a previously filed ULP and/for procedurally flawed and,
therefore, not arbitrable? If not...

Did the Agency violate the provisions of Federal law, regulations, and/or the parties’ Master
Agreomont (MA) when  deckded & memorandum of urderatanding (MOL) betwéan  and Loca
408 was ineffective and would no longer be honored, then, implemented overtime hiring
procedures based on a different MOU with Locals 406 arid 3696; and, in so doing, skipped over
bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408 when overtime was offered and assigned,
thereby, adversely affecting bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408? If so, what
should the remedy be?

V. Relevant Provislons of Federal law, regulations, and/or the parties’ Master Agreement.

The Union maintains that the pertinent provisions of Federal Law are Title 5 USC 7114 and 7116(d); and 5 USO
5596 — And, the Preamble; as well as, Article 1, Sections a and b; Article 2, Section a; Article 4, Sections a and b;
Article 7, Sections a, b, ¢, d and k; Article 9, Section a 4; Article 18, Section p 1 and 2; and, Article 31, Section d
and f 1, 2, and 3 as being the relevant provisions of the Master Agreement. The Agency’s bﬂef did not cite any
specific provisions of Federal law and regulations, but :did specify: that the following provisions. of the Master
Agreement were relevant ~ Article 1, Section a and ¢; Article 3, Section a; Article 5, Section a; Article 9; Article 18;
Section p 1; Article 31, Section d, e, and f 1; and Article 32, Section a.and h.

The Arbitrator views all applicable Federal law and regulations relevant, especially 5 USC 71 and flowing
government-wide regulations. While both parties have pointed the Arbitrator to-several specific provisions of the
MA that each view as particularly relevant, it is interesting they agree on only four specific provisions — Article 1-
Recognition, Section a; Article 9-Negotiations at the Local Lovel, Section a; Article 18-Hours of Work, Section p;
and Article 31-Greivance Procedures, Sectionsd and f 1.

The Arbitrator, however, sees the parties’ Master Agreement in total ~ that is all provisions within the four-comers
of the base document, as well as, any supplemental agreements and memorandums of understanding, as
relevant. With the following parts requiring particular attention — The Preamble; Article 1-Recognition; Article 2-
Joint Labor Management Relations; Article 3-Goveming Regulations; Article 4-Relationship of this Agreement to
Bureau Policies, Regulations and Practices; Article 5-Rights of the Employer: Article 7-Rights of the Union; Article
S-Negotiations at the Local Level; Article 18-Hours of Work: Article 31-Grievance Procedure; Article 32-Arbitration;
Articlo 42-Effective Date and Duration of this Agreement; and Appendix A. Nevertheless, while:some Arbitrators
make a practice of documenting the specifics of each agreement provision they find relevant in the body of their
decision/award; the undersigned will detail only those specific provisions and wording he feels are neaded to
support his analysis, findings, and decision; and, that detall will normally be placed in the endnotes.

V. Summary of the Parties’ Poslﬁon(o_).
A. The Agency/Employer.
Threshold Challenges That The Subject Grievance Is Not Arbitrable.

The essence of the Agency’s position, as expressed initiglly in the grievance decision issued September 20, 2013;
during the AC and hearing; and, in post-hearing submissions, is that the subject grievance is not arbitrable. While
the {\gency‘s final decision denied the grievance 'because it was filed with the wrong office; during the AC, at
hearing, and in post-hearing submissions, the Agency also claimed the grievance is bamed because it was
untimely and the Union filed an earlier Unfair Labor Practice (ULP) charge with the Federal Labor Relations
Authority (FLRA) “over the same issue.” :

» As for the contention that the grievance is barred because the Union filled an earlier ULP, the Agency
argues...

e that the Union submitted a ULP on July 25, 2013, charging that the Agency’s use of a new
VI B & D BAuUres was ere -

0N overtime

e then on September 11, 2013, filed the subject grievance; and
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o thatthe “issue in the ULP is in direct relation to the issue in the union’s written grievance and
advanced in the arbitration hearing.” [Emphasis added)

Citing 5 USC 7121(d) which provides that — lssues which may be raised under a negoﬁa@d grievance procedure
may, in the discretion of the aggrieved party, be raised under that procedure or as an unfair labor practice, but not
under both procedures; the Agency points out that the Federal Court reviewed the matter of a grievance being
barred due to the filing of an unfair labor practice and ruled that a grievance is barred when (1) the same issue is
the subject of a grievanca and of the ULP charge, (2) that issue was raised in X prior ULP charge, and (3) t.he
decislon to file the ULP charge was within the discretion of the aggrieved party. Further, the Agency maintains
that the FLRA has consistently held, “that an issue is raised within the meaning of section 71 16(d) of the Statute at
the time of the filing of the grievance or a ULP charge, even if the grievance or the ULP charge is not adjudicated
on the merits.”? Accardingly, the Agency maintains that, based on FLRA case law, the subject grievance is barred
by the filing of the earlier ULP; and must be dismissed.

ance-is-barrec aifierfiled ULR the Agency argues the
not filad in

ly manner.

8124

 because it was

> As for the contention that the grievance is procedurally flawed because it was not filed in a timely manner,
the Agency contends that...

The parties’ Master Agresment (MA), Article 31, Section e®, allows the Arbitrator to decide the timeless of the
grisvance if it is raised as a threshold issue. The Agency reads this provision as making “it very clear that a party
does not waive an untimeliness issue during the processing of the grievance, even if that party does not inform the
other party of the untimeliness issue” and, that “the negotiated language allows the issue of timeliness to be raised
at any time up to the time of a hearing before an Arbitrator." On this point, the Agency argues that the courts have

said'id“eAa knowing plaintiff has an obligation to file promptly or lose his claim*®; and that Elkouri & Elkouri
provides...

If the language of an agreement is clear and unequivocal, an arbitrator generally will not give it a
meaning other than that expressed... Even though the parties to an agreement disagree as to its
meaning, an arbitrator who finds the language to be unambiguous will enforce the clear
meaning... Arbitrators apply the principle that parties to a contract are charged with full
knowledge of its provisions and of the significance of its language... Thus, the clear meaning of

Noting that the MA, Article 31, Section d, provides that “Grievances must be filed within forty (40) calendar days of
the date of the allaged grievable occurrence”; the Agency argues that since the Union was “aware of the presumed
violation on July 3, 2013, that the grievance should have been filed within forty calendar days from that date.
Pointing out that, the grievance form filed by the Union on Septembsr 11, 2013, provided that the violation
complained of occurred on August 20, 20137 » @nd, that the Union's ULP filed with the FLRA on July 25, 2013%,
provided that the presumed Agency viclation occurred on July 3, 2013 - the Agency argues that the Union was

If, however, the Arbitrator does not find the grievance was untimely filed, the Agen then argues that the
grievance Is procedurally defective because it was filed with the wrong office. Agency o8

> As to the contention that the grievance is procedurally flawed because it was filed with the wrong office...

On this point, the Agency maintains that the subject grievance should have been filed with the Complex Warden

:ang not with the Regianal Director. Here the Agency points out that Article 31, Section f, of the MA provides, in

“...\yhen ﬁling.a grievance, the grievance will be filed with the Chief Executive Officer of the
instlmtipnlfaahty. if the grigvanca pertaing to the action of an individual for which the Chief
Officer of the instituticn/facility has disciplinary authority over....[Emphasis added]’
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Relying on the testimony of the Complex's Human Resources Manager”; the Agency contends that the issue
be:r!lg ggneved involved ¥he sohedulin% and hiring of overtime; and that such assignments are done by the
Lieutenants and/or the Captains of the various institutions within the Complex — Therefore, since the Warden has
disciplinary authority over the subordinate supervisors/managers at the Complex, the grievance should have been
filed with the Warden. : ‘

Finally, that the technical requirements for filing a grievance were negotiated by the Uniqn; the Agency,
malntglrggﬁ:i:%nion should be expected to comply with the technical aspects of the negotiated proeamre Th?t
grievance was barred by the filing of a prior ULP; was untimely filed; and, filed with the wrong office; therefore,
should not be arbitrable. To support these conclusions the Agency cites elsven (11) arbltaﬂon-dedgzeaglawards
invoiving the BOP and AFGE where the arbitrator denied the grievance for lack of procedural arbitrability.

Position on the Merits of the Grievance.
The comerstones of the Agency’s position on the merits of this case are:

1. That the parties' Master Agreement is a “national collective bargeining agreement” which
covers ail bargaining unit employees throughout-the Agency, including those at the Butner
Federal Correctional Complex, regardless of any AFGE Local affifiation.

2. That the MA, in the Preamble and Article 1, Section c, clearly defines “the Ur_tior)' as the
Council of Prison Locals; and, identifies the Council as the exclusive represantative of afl
bargaining unit employees, not the indivl@ual-AFGE.Locals. ' :

3. That the duty to bargain resides only at the level of the exclusive representative; and, g,bsent
an agreement between the parties providing for local negotiations or other delégaho‘n of
authority, there is no duty to bargain below the level of the exclusive representative.

4. Thet various provisions in the MA (including Article 18, Section p 1, the primary provision
identified in the subject grievance as havingibeen violated) are the product of impact and
implementation (1&I) bargaining at the national level by the éxclusive representative; as
such, the \MA has established who is eligible for overtime within the Agency, regardiess of
location; and, in accordance with the “cover by" doctrine, management does not have to
bargain over matters already contained in or covered by the MA® Furthermore, citing
excerpts from a previcus Bureau of Prisons arbitration decisions™, management’s actions in
assigning overtime are-covered by the “reserved rights” doctrine.

Noting that, Article 18, Secticn p 1, of the parties’ Master Agreement provides...

“...when management determines that it is necessary to pay overtime for positions/assignments
normally filled by bargaining unit employees, queltfied employees in the bargaining unit will
receive first cansideration for these assignments, which will be distributed and rotated equitably
among bargaining unit employees..." '

The Agency argues that the a key problem with the subject case is that the Union, AFGE, has established three
different locals at the Butner Complex; Locals 405, 408, and 3696; and, that Local 408 believes Article 18, Section p
1, of the MA Iimits assignment of outside hospital overtinte'to members of Local 408 before members of the other
locals are assigned such overtime. Whereas, management belleves. that the provision applies to all qualified
bargaining unit employees regardiess of their local membership designation. Moreover, the Agency further

argues
that this dispute is not just between Local 408 and management, but also between. Local 408 and the two-other
AFGE Locals at FCC Butner, Local 405 and 3696.

Far the Agency, Local 408's position that — each respective local.represents its own bargaining unit; and, as such,

when management datem_nnes that it is necassary to pay overtime for positions/assignments normally filled by

Local 408's bargaining unit employees, Local 408's bargaining unit employeas should receive consideration for

those assignments befere other Local's BUESs - ignores tho fact that all bargaining unit employees at Butner are

:tf:l\‘l:efed bfthel MA: are In the same national bargaining-unit; and, that bargaining unit is represented by-the Council
rison Locals,
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Turning to the wording of Article 1§, Sectiop P 1, which starts off, "When management dotermines that it is

Agency maintains that this waording doses not limit the positions/assignments to one priso& or to one department, or
to one local since the Master Agreement is a national collective bargaining agreement, Therefore, it is argued,
anytime management decides to use overtime to fill a position/assignment that normally would be filled with a
bargaining unit employes, management must follow the subsequent requirements as detailed further in Sectionp 1.

Moving to the next portion of Article 18, Section p 1, which reads “...qualified employees in the bargaining unit will
receive first considsration for these overtime assignments...." Then, noting that “qualified barga[ning unit
employees” are to recsive first consideration; the Agency claims that the term “qualified” does not pertain to local
union membership; but rather, to the qualifications needed to perform the specific posltionlasslgnmqnt, For
example, the Agency argues that in the subject case, the overtime m question pertained to those assignments

Furthermore, management must ensure the best possible security and safety to the public, the employees, and the
inmates. Noting that the work enviranment of a correctional facility is very different from most other employment
situations, the Agency points out that, the Supreme Court has addressed this fact and found that prison
administrators are entitled to more deference on the issue of internal security. 3 Also, the Agency maintains that the
Federal Labor Relations Authority (FLRA or Authority) has also agreed with this judgment providing that "A Federal
carrectional facility has special security concems which may not be present at other locations.**®

Accordingly, the Agency argues, if management is going to fill an outside hospital assignment with overtime, only
those employees who have the BPT certification are “qualified” to work the overtime assignment. However, based
on this portion of the provision, BPT certified bargaining unit employees would receive first consideration before
BPT certified non-bargaining unit employess could recsive consideration.

employees; not the differences in AFGE Local ffiliation. If that were the case, the Agency argues, there should be

Some wording in the provision that identifies it must be by individual AFGE Local, However, the Agency points out
that the term "Local” is nowhere to be found in Article 18, Section p 1.

Turning to the last portion of Article 18, Saction p 1's wording “...which will be distributed and rotated equitably
among bargaining unit employess;” the Agency notes that “nowhers in this language does it state this is done by
individual local union designation.” For the Agency, since the wording of Secﬁgn P 1, does nat designate by local

According to the Agency, Article 18, Section P 1's provisions, as negotiated by the Council of Prison Locals, require
thatan employes be qualified for the assignment and that bargaining unit employees receive first consideration over
non-bargaiqmg unit employees. Therefore, as long as a Bureay of Prison's bargaining unit employee is qualified to
work a particular overtime assignment, then he or she is allowed to be considered along with gl other bargaining
unit employess, with such assignments to be rotated equitably among gl other bargaining unit employees. The
determination of who receives first consideration (bargaining unit over non-bargaining unit) and who is eligible for
bargaining unit overtime (qualified bargaining unit employees over ron-qualified) is already covered by the Master
Agresment; and, i al institu d D bargain over these .[Emphasisadded]

Throughout its arguments on the merits of the subject grisvance the Agency has alluded that the Union’s position
assig ' Someway infringe on management's rights under § USG 71 06(a), noting the FLRA
has held that: the dscision whether or not to fill vacant positions is encompassed within an agency's right to assign
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employeses under Section 7106(a)(2)(A) of the Statute™ ; proposals rseaquiﬁng an agency to fill vacancies interferes
with management's rights under Section 7108(a) of the «Statut‘_e- ; the right to assign wc;k under § USC
7106(a)(2)(B) encompasses the right to determine the particular duties to be asssgneg; when work assignments will
occur, and to whom or what positions the duties will be ‘assigned:“.. as well as, the n‘gtgt» to as_stgn overtime and to
determine when the overtime will be performed™: and; proposals that would require management :o—qi?sign
overtime duty to employees when it would otherwise chioose to terminate their tours of duty are nonnegotiable.*' -

The Agency also noted that the FLRA has stated an agency has the right to determine the quelification of
empfoyeescgssmned to jobs, and that right cannot be infringed through interpretation of a contract by an‘Arbitrator.
On this point the Agency cites VAMC, Togus and AFGE Local 2610, 17 FLRA 963, 964 (1985), where FLRA
reviewed an arbitration award where the arbitrator held that the agency violated the contract for equitable
distribution of overtime assignments — The Arbitrator found that the agency had been detailing an employeazto‘a'jab
that provided some overtime and then the agency stopped the detall because the employee was not qualified to
perform the work. ' The FLRA set the award-aside stating that it is management's right to detsrmine the necessary
qualifications for the-job. {n ancther ‘case, the F:RA stated that an Arbitrator coy!d not conipel ‘management to fill
positions with individual grievants who contended that they met the agency qualification requirements; ﬂnqing that
the award prevented the agency. from epplying its interpretation to qualification stagdards and thereby denied
management its right to make selections in ﬂlllngipositi‘t:ns'»*un@ 5-USC §7106(a)(2)(c).

The Agency further cautions, that arbitrators should not substitute their judgment over management's dqe:s!ons;
unless it can be shown that management abused their authority. Citing Elkouri the Agency maintains that many
arbitrators have recognized that except as restricted by the agreement the right to schedule work remains with
management. ~ According to the Agency, to conclude that management must fill outside hospital posts with

employess in the BOP. Furthermore, the Agency érgues that an arbitrator has already dafined ‘Article 18, Section
P's, provision for FCC Butner — Finding that bargaining unit employess from all the local unions at FCC Butner had
to be considered together in granting overtime opportunities; moreover, that decision was upheld by the FLRA.®
Again, the Article 18, Section P., provision does not state that management must use Gualified bargaining unit
employees from a particular local-union first..

In conclusion, the Agency argues, that the Union's previously filed ULP bars the instant grievance and, therefore
should be dismissed. If not, the Union's untimely filing of the grievdnce andlor filing the grievance with the wrong
office violates the negotiated provisians of the Master Agresment and must be dismissed. As to the merits, the
Agency maintains that the Union failed to meet its ‘burden; that the wording of the relevarit Master Agreement
provisions @re clear and concise; furthermore, a prior Arbitration decision and FLRA ruling supports the Agency’s
arguments n this case - Therefore, the Agency respectfully requests that the grievance be denied. '

B. The UnloﬁlGrlevant.
Threshold Challenges That The Subject Grievance Is Not Arbitrable.

The Union acknowledges that the Agency's final dacision on the subject grievance, denying it because it was filed
with the wrong office, constituted a threshold challenge. However; the Union asked that the Arbitrator take note
that the Agency’s further threshold challenges - That the grievance is barred because of an earlier filed unfair
labor practice, and/or was untimely were never raised during the processing of the grievance; and were not raised
by the Agency unti at the administrative conference with the Arbitrator. Noting that the parties’ Master Agreement,
in Article 31, Secticn o, only provides that “the arbitrator will decide timeliness if raised as a threshold issue™: and
that the MA is otherwise silent on the raising of procadural, or any other, arbitrability questions, as well as, an

g}rt;i!t!ratcr-‘s authority to address such issues; the Union questioned if it should have been forewarned of such

Nevertheless, like the Agency, the Union reminds the Arbitrator that he is bound by the four comers of the parties’
Master Agreement. Noting that Section 32, Section h, in Ppart provides ~ “The Arbitrator shall have no power to
add to, subtract from, disregard, alter, or modify any of the terms of: 1. This Agreement or 2, Published Federal
Bureau of Prls_cns policies and regulations.” = The Union argues that the Agency is raising threshold issues not
contemplated in the MA; that the MA only addresses threshald issues in one place and that is, as noted above,
Article 31, Section o, regerding the threshold issue of “timelinass.”
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> As for the Agency's contention that the grievance is barred because the Union filed an earlier ULP, the
Union argues...

Page 11-60

o that the FLRA has found for a grievance to be barred from consideration under Section
7116(d) by an earlier-filed ULP charge;

o the issue that is the subject matter of the grievance must be the same as the
issue that is the subject matter of the ULP;

o such issue must have been earlier raised under the ULP procedures; and

o the selection of the ULP procedures must have been at the discretion of the
aggrieved party.*

well as, the Warden of FCI-2, would have to also sign the MOU. On the same day, March 12, 2012, the Wardsn of
FCI-1 and the LSCI, called for all three Unions at Butner, Local 405, Local 408, and Local 3686, to begin

that the Warden of FCI-1 and the LSCI “was taking Local 408's MOU on overtime procedures off the table.” After
which the Local filed its ULP accusing the FCC Butner with bad faith negotiation.

and FCI-2; and was based on violation of the Federal Labor Relations Statute 5 USC 71 16(a)(1, 2, 4, and 8). This
ULP was resolved by a Settlement Agreement signed by the Local 408 President and the FCC Warden, and
approved by the FLRA February 25, 2013, and final sxecution of the MOU negotiated and approved by Local 408
and FCC managgment, also on February 25, 2013, on Local 408's overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the

Roster program with AFGE Locals 405 and 3896, which the Agency maintained superseded the MOU with Local
408 signed February 25, 201 3; and, therefore, would no longer be honored.
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Accordingly, the Union argues here that the ULP was accusing the Agency of repudiation and violation of lhe-;
FLRA approved settlement agreement and its MOU with Local 408, finalized and executed on February 25, 2013;
again based on violation of the Federal Labor Relations Statute, 5 USC 7116(a)(1, 5, 7, and 8).

While, both ULPs and the subject grievance involve the MOU negotiated between Local 408 and Fcp Efutr.\er °f'
the overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program within the institutions it
represented, FMC and FCI-2 from October 26, 2011, to March 5, 2012, that was ﬁnallzedle:_cam{ied an F?bmaw
25, 2013; the Union notes that neither ULP alleged a contract violation, and particularly, a violation of Article 18,
Section p 1. In addition neither ULP alleged that bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408 were
adversely affected and owed back pay under the Back Pay Act 5 USC 5596,

Accordingly, the Union requests that the Agency’s threshold challenge that the subject grievance is barred by the
Union’s filing of a previous ULP be denied.

» As for the Agency's contention that the grievance is procedurally flawed because it was not filed in a timely
manner, the Union contends that...

The Union offers the following timeline for key events leading up to the filing of the subject grievance... Ft_:liomng
initiation of negotiations between Local 408 and FCC Butner management on October 26, 2011, on tht_a issue of
overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program for bargaining unit
employees represented by Local 408 in the Federal Medical Center and FCI-2 at Butner, on March 5, 2012,
agreement was reached on a new MOU...On May 18, 2012, Local 408 files the first of two ULPs...On February
25, 2013, the FLRA approved settlement agreement was reached and Local 408s MOU was fully exequted and
FCC management agreed to honor said MOU...On July 2, 2013, FCC Butner management signs MOU with Locals
405 and 3696...0n July 3, 2013, FCC management notifies Local 408 that the February 25, 2013, MOU with Local
408 is superseded and will not be honored and that it intends to implement the new overtime procedures agreed to
in the MOU with Local 405 and 3696... July 25, 2013, Local 408 files the second ULP...On August 12, 2013, Local
408 becomes aware that FCC Butner started the new overtime hiring procedures on August 11, 201 3, and that
Local 408's BUESs are being affected...On August 13, 2013, Local 408 attempts informal resolution...On August
15, 20183, Local 408 becomes aware that there are apparent glitches in the new overtime hiring procedures...On
August 20, 2013, Local 408's BUES are not allowed to sign up on the FCI-1 and LSCI overtime rosters...and On
September 11, 2013, Local 408 files a formal grievance alleging that the Complex Warden® violated 5 USC 7116;
the parties’' Master Agreement, Article 6 and 18; as well as the Back Pay Act when he changed the way bargaining
unit employees represented by AFGE Local 408 were assigned/hired for overtime from that agreed to and outlined

provided for and outlined by the MOU executed July 3, 2013, between FCC Butner management and AFGE Locals

405 and 3696; thereby skipping over and/or denying BUEs represented by Local 408 the opportunity to be
assigned/hired for overtime.,

While the Union acknowledges receiving a memorandum from the Complex Warden on July 3, 2013, that the
overtime hiring procedures agreed to in the MOU between FCC Butner management and AFGE Locals 405 and
3696 would take effect on August 11, 2013 -- It was not until August 12, 2013, that Local 408 actually learned that
the new procedures were being followed, and August 20, 2013, that Local 408 had knowledge that BUEs
represented by Local 408 were being adversely affected by the new procedures. Accordingly, on September 11,
2013, thirty-one (31) calendar days after actual knowledge that the new overtime hiring procedures were being

used and twenty-three (23) calendar days after learning that BUEs represented by Local 408 were being adversely
affected that the formal grisvance was filed.

Furthermore, as noted on the grievance form Local 408 views the actions initiated by the Butner Complex
Warden's execution of the MOU with Locals 405 and 3696, setting new outside hiring procedures which adversely
affect BUEs represented by Local 408 as a continuing violation of 5 USC 7116, the parties’ Master Agreement,
and the Back_ Pay Act, starting on August 12,2013, through at least the date of the hearing in the subject case. As

the for[nal grievance form clearly showed the alleged violations and resulting adverse actions were occurring daily
the Union maintains the “continuing violation doctrine” applies.

Citing Elkouri & Elkour™ the Union argues that many arbitrators

have held that “continuing” violations of an
agreement (as opposed to a single isolated and completed transacti

on) give rise to “continuing” grievances in the
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Same sense that the act complained of may be said to be repeated from day to day, with each day treated as a
new “occurrence.” These arbitrators permit the filing of such grievances at any time, although any back pay would
ordinarily accrue only from the date of filing

As the grisvance was filed within the forty (40) calendar days of the date that Local 408 actually learned that the
new hiring procedures were being applied and that BUES represented by Local 408 were being adversely affected;
Local 408 asks the Arbitrator to find the subject grievance was timely and not procedurally flawed.

P As to the Agency's contention that the grievance is procedurally flawed because it was filed with the wrong
office...

The Union notes that the Agency, in its final decision on the subject grievance, at hearing, and in post-hearing
submissions, argues that the subject grievance with filed with the wrong office - That is, it was filed with the
Regional Director and not with the Complex Warden. Here the Agency's argument is that the Complex's
Lieutenants are the BOP employees who make the assignments of overtime; and, it is their actions which have
resulted in BUEs represented by Lacal 408 allegedly being adversely affected, Therefore, since it is the Warden
who has disciplinary authority over the Lieutenants; in accordance with Article 31, Section f 1, the grievance should
have been filed with the Warden =

However, the Union érgues that the grievance concems actions by the FCC Butner Complex Warden not
subordinate employees. While acknowledging that the Complex Lieutenants are the_ina“wtduals who actually

, ag
confirmed, the Lieutenants were simply following the orders of the Complex Warden as directed through the
Institution Wardens, Assaclate Wardens, and Captains.

Since the subject grievance concemed the direct actions of the Complex Warden and his decision — to approve the
new overtime hiring procedures established with his execution of the Melporandum of Understanding with Locals

not be followed; and to direct all subordinate staff throughout the complex to follow the new overtime hiring
procedures; that resulted in BUEs represented by Local 408 being skipped over for overtime assignments and

adversely affacted, e, in accordance with Article 31, Section f2, the Union filed the subject grievance with
Regional Director. %

Since the subject grievance was appropriately filed with the Regional Director, the Union asks the Arbitrator to
deny the Agency’s threshald challenge.

Position on the Merits of the Grievance.

Before addressing the merits of the grievance, the Union spent considerable time “educating” the Arbitrator on the

'éniQU? structure and characteristics of the labor-management relationship at the Butner Federal Correctional
omplex.

As noted above, one.ofmecomerstonesofmeAgency's position on the merits of the grievance is that the Master
Agreement clearly establishes that the AFGE, Council of Prison Locals is the exclusive rep: ive of the a

resentative
Bureau-wide bargaining unit comprised of all BOP employees as defined in 5 USC §7103.% Therefore, the AFGE
Locals, such as Local 408, do not represent employees in their own bargaining unit.

Acknowledging that the Council of Prison Locals is the exclusiye
- A - 'W%"g ains;; o I S RBETy oy

hat:itras e
sent:itsrewniidestifial

, Lol recy iauenomy of the.l.ogsals, suct

iStiRet.group-of. B act a etimeofth hearing on the subject grievance
there were three AFGE Locals representing their own distinet group of employees at the Butner Complex, Local
405 representing some 282 or approximately twenty-four percent of the BUEs, 408 representing some 662 or
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approximately fifty-six percent of the BUES, and 3696 represented some 240 or approximately twenty percent of
the BUES at Butner.

rough testimony and presentation of exhibits the Uidon then explained the ‘struchire and docu d the history”
hatl: 'r i .( . vithithe.Geuncil. As-presented, the highlights of Butner's development and the
establishment of AFGE Locals and their respective representational role are -- in 1894 Butner facility consisted of
two institutions, the Federal Comectional Institution, a medium security facility, (designated as FCI-1) and the
Federal Prison Camp. At that time there was only one AFGE Local, Local 3696, representing Butner employ_ees.
in September 1895 a new facility was activated, the Low Security Correctional Institution (designated as LSCl)and
a second AFGE Local, Local 405, was established to represent employees assigned to the LSCI and the Camp.
In 2000 the Federal Medical Center was activated. With the opening of the FMC, Butner now was comprised of
four institutions, FCI-1, the LSCI, the FMC, and the Federel Prison Camp. However, even though Butner now
consisted of four institutions there was still only two AFGE Locals at Butner, Local 3638 and Lacal 405. Then in
December 2000 AFGE Local 408 was activated. With the activation of Local 408 staff in the four institutions at
Butner were represented by three Locals — Local 3696 represented BUESs in FCI-1, Local 405 represented BUES in
the LSCI and the Camp, and Local 408 represented BUEs in the.FMC. In 2006 a second medium security Federal
Correctional Institution was opened (designated FCI-2).

With the activation of FCI-2 Butner became a Complex; and, decided to consolidate departments. . This
consolidation required the Locals to figure out how they were going to be configured. The three Local presidents
split up the department functions and institutions.

Accordingly, as of 2012 BUEs in the four institutions at Butner were represented as follows™ - Local 405's
institutional coverage was the LSCI; Local 408's institutional coverage was the FMC and FCI-2; Local 3696's
institutional coverage was FCI-1; and Central Office/Re-entry Raleigh CCM activities were represented by Local
3546. While each Lacal was still identified by its organizational coverago, with the consclidation of departments
each respective Local also represented employees assigned to/working in specific operational divisions or
functional areas™ which might change by institution. Therefore, while Local 405 was recognized as representing
BUEs in the LSCI, it only represented employees assigned to the following divisionalffunctional activities -
Recreation/Education, UNICOR, Laundry, Food Services, Warehouse, Trust Fund, and R & D within all four
institutions, as well as, Correctional Services and Case managers/Counselors/Secretaries in the LSCI; Local 408
was recognized as representing BUEs in the FMC and FCI-2, it only represented employees assigned to the
following divisionalffunctional activities — Correctional Services in FMC and FCI-2, Medical in all four institutions,
Case managers/Counselors/Secretaries in FMC and FCI2, Psychiatry Services in all four institutions, and
Psychology Services in FMC, FCI-2 and LSCI: Local 3696 was recognized as representing BUES in FCI-1, it only
represented employees assigned to the following divisionalfunctional activities — Facilities, Safety, and Religlous
Services In all four institutions, as well as, Comactional Services, Case managers/Counselors/Secretaries, and

Psychology Services in FCI1; and Local 3546 representing Central Office/Re-Entry/Raleigh CCM in all four
institutions.

SHID NI )

While, AFGE and the Council of Prison Locals are the recognized exclusive representative of all BUES in the
Burqau. functionally that duty relates only to the negotiation of the Master Agreement and handling Bureau wide
multi-institution issues and grievances. Starting with the Preamble the MA envisions representation and
negotiation at the institutionalffacility leve! through AFGE Locals®. For example, Article 2 dealing with “Joint Labor
Management Relations” provides in Section f that “The parties at the national level endorse the concept of reguler
labor management mestings at the local level... The actus procedures for lo : g ings will
K led locally.” [Emphasis added] Article 3 dealing with “Goveming Regulations provides in Section a 1,

-..local supplemental agreements will take-precedence over any Agency issuance derived or -generated at the

local-level...” and at Section d 5, “...when locally-proposed policy issuances are made, the. A s
will be notified...and the manner in which loca negotiations gre conducted will perallel this article.” [Emphasis
e And, Article 18, Section p, begins with “Specifi codure gerding overtime assianments mav be

eqotiated locally.” [Emphasis added] In fact, the term “local and/or local negotiatioris*-is merntioned
soms eleven times in the MA,; the term “Local President and/or Local Union President” is mentioned some fourteen
times; and the term “Local supplemental agreement(s)" is mentionad some five times. Ground rules for local
negotiation of supplemental agreements are.even.presented-as-an appendix to the MA.

The Union then explained how overtime was assigned and distributed up until the execution of the new procedures
by the Complex Warden in 20133. As of 2000, and up to 2013, each institution had its own overtime procedures
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negotiated by the Local representing BUES in that institution, in accordance with Article 18, Section p; i.e. by quel
3696 for FCI-1, Local 405 for LSCI, and Local 408 for FMC and FCI-2. Since each Local represented BUEs within
a specific institution, its BUEs were given first consideration when posting overtime within that institution or
involving inmates from that institution. While each Local negotiated its own procedure, either with a formgl MOU
or seme other policy issuance, Local 408's first formal MOU addressing overtime hiring procedures. and utilization

And, in 2011 the first multi-local MOU was executed between Butner and Locals 3696, 405 and 408 pertalning to
the handling of treatment at the FMC and outside hospital coverage of inmates unable to receive ‘medical
treatment at his assigned institution, FCI-1 and LSCI®®2.  These negotiated procedures were understood and
respacted by the Agency.

Accardingly, the Union argues that these negotiated procedures established a pattern of behavior that became a
condition of employment; that is a ‘past-practice” had been established®. While a matter can qualify as a
condition of employment and become an established condition-of employment either through bargaining or through

became an established pattern of behavior and condition of employment that complied with the MA, Article 18,
Section p; and, the change in overtime hiring procedures directed by the Complex Warden viclated the past
practices of the parties at Butner FCC.

departments and institutions represented by each respective Local — Where Local 408 represented the BUEs they
received first cansideration... If the Local 408 list was exhausted and there was addilional need of employees, you
proceeded to the sign-up sheets for BUEs represented by the other Locals...After the BUEs were exhausted, if a
need continued then you tumed to the sign-up sheets for non-bargaining unit employees.

According to the Unien, in October 2011, as a result of a controversy that had arisen regarding outside medical
overtime, the three Locals sent management a joint proposal which adhered to the provislons of Article 18, Section
P, with respect to the first consideration issue. The Agency then made a counter proposal changing all MOU's and
establishing one consclidated roster program for overtime procedures. This counter proposal was rejected by the
three locals; and, Local .408’3 proposed MOU was agreed to and signed by Local 408's President and

maintains that by March 15, 2013, that is, within sighteen (18) days of the execution of the agreement with the
FLRA, the Agency continued its efforts to get a complex-wide overtime procedure/roster accepted: and on May 1
2013, Local 408's Prasident received an email regarding a meeting for the discussion of complex overtime.

Here the Union points out, that during the hearing, the Agsncy representative argued that the February 2013 MOy
provided for continuation of negotiations and, therefore, the Agency was entitled, and Local 408 was obligated, to
negotiate with management. However, the Union contends that this argument is not Supported by the process that
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led the parties to the February 2013 agreement and the literal meaning and the obvious intentions of the parties
when they entered into that settlement agreement and MOU.

is the Union's belief that the Agency's actions clearly show that management never had the intention of
::tomplyinguwith the February 23, 20?3, agreement. Prior to the February 2013 agreement, the Agency's posuin.n
was that it intended to implement a complex wide overtime procedure. Local 408 fiercely oppose_d.lpe Agency's
stance. It was in this scenario that the Agency entered into the agreement. However, as the activities that took
place afterwards show, the Agency’s conduct and execution of the agreement before the FLRA was a farce.

The Union argues that once the ULP was resolved and FLRA was no longer involved, the Agency felt free to
ignore its newigy executed MOU with Local 408. Clearly, the Agency's actions frczm March 2013 make a mockery uf
the process and efforts of FLRA and Local 408 to resolve the ULP. The Agency's actions are clear evidence that it
had no intention of complying with the February 2013 Settlement Agreement and the MOU execqted through
FLRA's assistance. With Local 408's refusal to engage in new negotiations, Butner management decided to pu_s.h
through the complex wide agreement with the other two Locals. That. action clearly damons:tratas bad faith
negotiation on the part of the Agency with the FLRA and Local 408 in settling the ULP and executing the February
2013 MOU with Local 408.

Here the Union points to 5 USC 7114, which provides in part:

“...The duty of an agency and an exclusive representative to negotiate in good _fai}h unqer
subsection (a) of this section shall include the obligation — to approach the negotiations with
a sincere resolve to reach a collective bargaining agreement...”

On this point the Union maintains that the FLRA has said “In determining whether a &party has fulfilled its
bargaining responsibility, the totality of the circumstances in a case must be considered.' In other words, the
Authority generally shuns the application of per se rules to identify bad faith acts during the bargaining process;
instead, it looks at the evidence as a whole to evaluate whether a party has complied with the mandate of Section
7114(b) to (among other things) "approach the negotiations with a sincere resolve to reach a collective bargaining
agresment...." In so doing, the Authority looks at the parties' actions to determine whether a party "has attempted
to evade or frustrate the bargaining responsibility” outlined in Section 7114(b).®

As for the Agency's negotiations with the other two Locals for a complex wide overtime procedure/roster; Local
408's President was told by both the former Complex Warden and FCI-2's Warden that the Agency could not enter
into a complex wide overtime procedurefroster unless all three Locals’ Presidents agreed and signed off on the
agreement. Therefore, considering the facts of this case it is obvious that Butner management negotiated the

joint MOU with Locals 3696 and 405 in bad faith knowing that the lack of agreement by all three Locals, the
complex wide overtime procedure/roster would violate Article 18 (p).

For the Union there is little doubt that the Agency's actions subsequent to the execution of the FLRA approved
settlement agreement and MOU with Local 408 to foreclose on its promises and proceed with the execution of an
agresment with only two of the three AFGE Locals at Butner and activate a complex-wide overtime procedure and
roster violated Article 18 (p) and caused BUEs represented by Local 408 to be skipped over and denied first
consideration in the assignment of overtime, thereby suffering an alteration of their overtime benefits.

Here the Union asks the Arbitrator to fully consider the testimony of Local 408's Chief Steward™ and documentary
evndepoe presented_ regarding the Union's re\_;iew of data from overtime sign-up lists prior to and after the

408 were skippegi in th_e assignment of overtime. The skipping over was shown to have occurred on numerous
occasions and in various scenarios. Accordingly, the Union argues that its review and the resulting
documentation entered into evidence clearly show, where all BUEs were included in a single sign-up sheet:

1. Every time that a BUE not represented by Local 408 was assigned/worked overtime

within institutionsldepanmentlposts represented by Local 408, a BUE represented by
Local 408 had been skipped over.
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¢ reasonable attomey fees related to the personnel action which, with respect to any decision
relating to an unfair labor practice or a grievance processed....”

Furthermore, the Union also points-out that the FLRA has ruled that the threshold requirement for an award of
attomey's fees under the BPA is a finding that the grievant was affected by an unjustified or quan'aqwd
personnel action, which resulted in the withdrawal or reduction of the grievant's pay, allowances, or differentials.

Once su_gh a finding is made, fees may be awarded in accordance with the standards established i 5 USC
7701(g).

S BN enTorces gmMoRtorSetieTment SWAeRTinestlybenefited:him:orhep: 750!' example, an arbitrator's
reduction of a suspension to a reprimand quelified the grievant as the prevaliling party.” Also, an tngivmual may be
a prevailing party when he or she prevails on one theory of the case but fails under another theory.

ey L
ety A T e R e R i

SHE R thithe-criterianf.5:L

V1. Discussion, Analysis, and Findings.

In order to properly address the primary questions and issues raised in this grievance, it is necessary to have a
clear understanding of the events and actions taken by the parties in response to those events leading up to
August 11, 2013; and AFGE Local 408's submission of the grievance that is the subject of this arbitration. And, a
brief recap of the development of the Butner FCC will help us focus-6n'those events and actions. -

The Federal Bureau of Prisons operates several different types of facilities, including individual Correctional
Institutions, Dstention Centers, Prisen Camps, Transfer Centers, Medical Centers, Penitentiaries, and Metropalitan
Correctional Centers; as well as, fourteen Federal Correctional Centers (FCC), one of which is the Butner FCC in
North Carolina. As was explained through the testimony of Local 408's previcus and cumrent President, as
supported through documentary evidence submitted and accepted...

¢ In 1894 Butner consisted of two facilities, the Federal Correctional Institution known locally
as FCI-1 and a Federal Prison Camp; and had one AFGE Local, number 3696, '
the fecilities bargaining unit employees (BUES). In September 1885 a new facility was
activatad-at Butner, the Low Security Camectional Institution known locally as LSCI or Low;
and a second AFGE Local, number 405, was added to represent BUES in the new facility.

® On February 6, 1898, a new Master Agreement between the Federal Bureau of Prisons (the
Agency) and the AmericanﬁF'eder‘aﬁon of Government Employees (AFGE), AFL-CI0, Councll
of Prison Locals — 33 (the Union) is the exclusive representative of the nationwide
consolidated bargaining unit, while AFGE Locals function as the Union's agent and affiliate
for the purpose of representing bargsalhing unit employees at the institutionfacility level.”

* In year 2000 the Federal Medical Center, known as FMC, was activated. With this new
facility Butner now had four institutions - the FCI-1, the Camp, LSCI and the FMC; and, in
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December AFGE activated the third Butner Local, number 408, to represent BUEs in the
FMC.

¢ In 2006, a second medium security Federal Correctional Institution was opened at Butner,
known as FCI-2, Accordingly, BUEs were represented as follows — Local 405's institutional
coverage was the LSCI; Local 408's institutional coverage was the FMC and FCI-2: Local
3696's institutional coverage was FCI-1.

e With the activation of FCI-2 Butner became a Complex; and, management decided to
consolidate departments. This consolidation required the three AFGE Locals to figure out
how they were going to be configured. The three Local presidents split up the department
functions and institutions — While each Local was still identified generally by it organizational
coverage, with the consolidation of departments each respective Local also represented
employees assigned to/warking in specific operational divisional or functional areas, which
might change by institution’...

o While, Local 405 was recognized as representing BUES in the LSCI, it now
represented employees assigned to the following divisionalfunctional
activities - Recreation/Education, UNICOR, Laundry, Food Services,
Warehouse, Trust Fund, and R & D within all four institutions, as well as,
Correctional Services and Case managers/Counselors/Secretaries in the
LSCI;

o Local 408 was recognized as representing BUES in the FMC and FCI-2, it
now represented employees assigned to the following divisionalffunctional
activities — Comectional Services in FMC and FCI-2, Medical in all four
institutions, Case managers/Counselors/Secretaries in FMC and FCI-2,
Psychiatry Services in all four institutions, and Psychology Services in
FMC, FCI-2 and LSCI; and

o Local 3696 was recognized as representing BUEs in FCI-1, it now
represented employees assigned to the following divisionalffunctional
activities ~ Facilities, Safety, and Religious Services in all four institutions,
as woll as, Correcticnal Services, Case managers/Counselors/Secretaries,
and Psychology Services in FCI-1.

¢ As for overtime procedures... From year 2000, in accordance with Article 18, Section p, each

institution had its own overtime procedures negotiated by the Local representing BUESs in
that Institution...

o For FCI1, Local 3686 had its own procadure with BUES represented by

Local 3698 given first consideration when posting overtime within that
institution;

o For LSCI, Local 405 had its own procedure with BUEs represented by Local
405 given first consideration when posting overtime within that institution;

o For FMC and FCl2, Local 408 had its own procedure with BUEs
represented by Local 408 given first consideration when posting overtime in
those institutions.

o Since each Local represented BUEs within a specific institution, its BUEs
were given first consideration when. posting overtime within that institution or
involving inmates from that institution.

* On January 12, 2009, AFGE Local 405 filed a formal grievance conceming a change of
policy/past practice relating to the qualifications of BUES for overtime... Specificaily, a new
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policy that BUEs may not consider themseives as qualified for overtime if the available
overtime shift overlaps their regular shift.”

*  On or about April 19, 2010, a Settlement Agreement was executed between Local 405 and
Butner FCC relating to payment for overtime.

* On September 17, 2010, Local 405 files a second formal grievance conceming a change.vor
policy/past practice relating to elimination of allowing BUEs to work overtime that conflicts
andlor overlaps with their primary shift.%

¢ Local 408's first formal MOU addressing overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the
Correctional e§emi¢=r:us- Roster program was executed on November 4, 2010, for FMC and
FCI-2 BUEs. :

¢ August 10, 2011, proposal made by three Locals 405, 408, and 3696 which the Un[ons
maintain complied with MA, Article 18, Section pl, to ensure that each Local received
overtime on the inmates requiring medical/outside medical from the institutions that they
represent.

¢ During the period October 26, 2011, through March 5, 2012, Local 408 is in negotiations with
Butner FCC on the issue of overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the correctional
seyvices roster program. Agreemant was reached and Local 408 President and the FCC
Complex Warden signed a MOU. ,

* March 12, 2012, LSCI and FCI1 Warden calls Locals 405, 408 and 3696 to start
negotiations on a MOU for a One Complex COmputqﬁ;ed Overtime Program.®

* May 2, 2012, Locals mest with management to continue negotiation on overtime
proposal... Local 408 was told the Wardens of LSCUFCI-1 would sign the Local 408 MOU.

* On March 16, 2012, during the negotiations meseting on the One Complex Computerized
Overtime Program Lacal 408 was fold Warden of LSCUFCI-1 would not sign the Local 408
MOU and was “taking it off the table.”

* OnMarch 18, 2012, Local 408 files the first ULP.*

* OnMay 17 and June 2, 2012, meetings continued with management and three Locals on the
One Complex overtime procedures,

* July 23,2012, management and three Lacals decide to request mediation.
¢ October 11, 2012, mediation held no agreement reached.

» February 25, 2013, with assistance of FLRA, Settlement Agresment reached between Local

408 and Butner FCC and Local 408's MOU on hospital overtime procedures
signed/exacuted.® '

¢ On March 15, 2013, Local 408 recejved email from Butner management providing that the
Agency wanted to reopen negotiations on One Complex Overtims. o

* On April 12, 2013, Local 408 receives email from Butner management that Agency wanted
to reschedule Gne Complex overtime negotiations to April 22, 2013, he

¢ On May 1, 2013, Local 408 receives email from Butnef management that Agency wanted to
reschedule One Complex overtime negotiations to May 6, 2013, Ao
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* On June 18, 2013, Local 408 sends email to Butner management providing that Local 408
already has a MOU.%

e On July, 2, 2013, Butner management signs three-party MOU with Locals 405 and 3696 on
One Complex overtime procedures &

e On July 3, 2013, Warden replies to Local 408's June 18 email notifying Local 408 that the
February 25, 2013; MOU agreed upon with FLRA approval was ineffective and invalid.

* OnJuly 25, 2013, Local 408 files the second ULP for repudiation of agreement.*®

* On August 11, 2013, FCC Butner began new Complex-wide Hospital Overtime Hiring
Procedures.

¢ OnAugust 13, 2013, Local 408 attempts informal resolution process.®

e On Auglgt 15, 2013, FCC management identifies problem with new Complex-wide
program.

* On September 11, 2013, Local 408 files subject formal grievance '

* On September 20, 2013, Agency provides final response to Local 408's formal grievance.®
¢ On September 25, 2013, Local 408 notifies Agency of intent to arbitrate.®

e On January 10, 2014, the FLRA responded to/closed Local 408's second ULP, number WA-
CA-13-0636.%4

¢ Between August 28, 2013, and July 8, 2015, Local 408 has raised the issue of the outside
hospital overtime procedures/Correctional Services Roster Program and/or skipped overtime

issue up at the FCC LMR mestings aver eighteen times and each time it has either been
tabled or not fully addressed ®

¢ On April 15, 2014, FCC Butner management separated the FMC and FCI-2 rosters which for
two weeks infringed on Local 408's right to sign up for overtime; no one from the FMC could
sign up on the FCI-2 roster and FCI-2 staff could not sign up on the FMC roster.

e On May 19, 2014, the FLRA dacision on grievance filed by Local 405 on January 8, 2012,
conceming a change of policy/past practice relating to the qualifications of BUEs' for
overtime... Specifically, a new policy that BUEs may not consider themselves as qualified for
overtime If the available overtime shift overlaps their regular shift ®

This Arbitrator is well aware of the guidance provided in Elkouri & Elkouri, that he is confined to interpretation and
application of the parties’ agreement; does not sit to dispense his own brand of industrial justice; but, may of

course look for gtﬁganoe from many sources, as long as, his decision and award draws its essence from the

What is meant by wording in a contract inevitably depends on its context...A word changes meaning when it
becomes part of a sentence, the sentence when it becomes part of a Paragraph, the paragraph when it becomes
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part of a large ssction of text...Where the whole can be read to give significance to each part, that reading is
preferred....™ It is a fundemental principle of contract interpretation that a collective bargaining agresment is not
to be dissected; instead, the whole and every part must be considered in the determination of the meaning of any
of the integral parts....‘b Nevertheless, the ultimate responsibility of this, or any Arbitrator in the interpretative
process, is to rely on his background, experience, expertise in the labor-management process, giving due reggrcl
to the relationship of the parties and their presentations so as to provide as practical and realistic an interpretation
as possible under the given agresment.'®

A. Regarding the Agency’s threshold challenges...
As, explained above, the issue to be decided first is:

Is the subject grievance barred by a previously filed ULP and/or procedurally flawed and,
therefore, not arbitrable? If, not

Citing AFGE, Local 1411 v. FLRA, 960 F.2d. 176 (1992), which held that a grievance is barred by 5 USC §7116(d)
when (1) the same issue is the subject of the grievance and of the ULP chargs, (2) that issue was raised.in a prior
ULP charge, and (3) the decision to file the ULP charge was within the discretion of the aggrieved party; and, citing
International Assotiation of Machinists and Aerospace Workers, Lodge 39 and U.S. Department of the Navy, Naval
Aviation Depot, Norfolk, VA 44 FLRA 1291 (1992), which held that an issus is raised within the meaning of section
7116(d) of the Statute at the time of the filing of the grievance or a ULP charge, even if the grievance or ULP
charge is not adjudicated on. the merits; as, its first threshold questions, the Agency argues that the subject
grievance Is barred because “the Union initially filad an unfair labor practice over the same issue.” According fo the

Agency...
e “OnJuly 25, 2013, the Union submitted a ULP charge against the agency which claimed that
{le agency's use of a new MOU- artime procedires was. imprope

» the issus in the ULP is in direct relation to the issi
advanced in the arbitration hearing; and i

o the grievance was filed on Septe
(Emphasis added] Therefore,

. g?sed on FLRA case law, the grievance is barred by the. initial ULP charge and must be
smissed. ’

In respanse, citing DHHS and AFGE, Local 1668 56 FLRA 83 (2000), the Union paints out, in determining whether
a grievance and a ULP charge invo!\fles the same issue, the. Authority examines whether the ULP charge and the
grievance aross O Same se actual circ nstances d whether the legal theories advanced in s

[11€

e > r:~.-:r.--1$¢-,',—" e
B& Waones. invaivea

b e aea.vieation. Therefors, sincé both ULPs filed by Local 408 alleged statutory vicidtions, while
{he subloct grievanics alleged a contract violation, the ULPs and grievaince invalved different Iegal theosion o

3t

The record showg that from October 26, 2011, to March 5, 2012, Local 408 and FCC management were involved in
negotiations relating to the issue of overtime. hiring procedures and utllization of the Correctional Servicas Roster
program; and, on March 5, 2012, after reaching agreement Local 408's President and the FCC Butner Comiplex
Warden signed a MOU. Subsequently, the Warden of one of the institutions within the Complex called for all three
Locals :atVFc(_:‘Butna_r. Local 3688, 405, and 408, to begin negotiations on a complex-wide computerizad, overtime
hiring program. Having been assured by the Complex Warden that all the other institution Wardens would sign
Local 408's MOU, and that the MOU was in effect, Local 408 reiuctantly participated in the complex-wide
neg?tlations. Then, after questioning why the other institution Wardens had not signed Local 408's MOU, Local
408's President was told that one of the institution Wardens decided to “take Local 408's MOU off the table.” With
this action by FCC management, Local 408 filed the first ULP, charge number WA-CA-12-0513, on May 18, 2012,
alleging that the Agency violated 5 USC §7116{a)(1, 2, 4, and &) and was bargaining in bad faith,
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The record shows that the circumstances leading to the second ULP charge, number WA-CA-13-0638, filed on July
25, 2013, were — After the filing of the first ULP, Local 408 and FCC Butner management had, with the
eénccuragement and approval of FLRA, on February 25, 2013, executed a Settlement Agreement, as well as, the
previously negotiated. and partielly executed MOU that was the basis for the first ULP, and FLRA dismissed the
charge. Then within a few months, the same institution Wardsn who had, prior to the first ULP tabled Local 408's
MOU and refused to sign off on it, again called for negotiations on a complex-wide overtime hiring-program. Local
408 refused fo participate in the reconvened negotiations for a complex-wide overtime hiring program because it
had just executed its own MOU with FCC management on February 25, 2013. On July 2, 2013, FCC management
(the Complex/FMC Warden and Wardens of FCI-1, FCI-2, and the LSCI) executed a new MOU for a complex-wide
overtime hiring prooedureof &nd utilization of the Comectional Services Roster program with the two other Locals,
numbers 465 and 3696.'""" That same day, Local 408 was told that it's MOU, the one just executed on February
25, 2013, as part of the FLRA approved Settlement Agreement whereby the first ULP was dismissed, was
superseded and would no longer be honored. These actions by FCC management predicated the second ULP
alleging that the Agency violated 5 USC §7116(a)(1, 5, 7, and 8); the parties’ Master Agreement, Articles 6 and 18;
as well as, the Back Pay Act, 5 USC §5596 — When it repudiated the Settlement Agreemant and told Local 40§_|t's
FLRA approved MOU would no longer be honored; signed the new MOU on a complex-wide overtime hiring
program with Locals 3696 and 405; changed the way bargaining unit employees represented

received overtime, causing bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408 to be skipped over on the
overtime sign up lists, and not being allowed to sign up on some rosters.

On January 10, 2014, the FLRA responded to/closed Local 408's second ULP finding that:

e _ whether the Agency repudiated the Settlement Agreement it approved on February 25,
2013, depended on whether the Agency repudiated the. underlying March 2012 MOU:

* the Agency's conduct regarding the March 2012 MOU did not amount to repudiation,
because the alleged breach of the March 2012 MOU was not clear and patent... [explaining];

¢ areasonable interpretation, though not necesss V NG only reasonabhle inte
the March 2012 MOU contemplated further negotiations about overtime procedures. [and)

» the Agency did subsequently initiate bargaining on new overtime procedures, resulting in a
complex-wide agreement... [and, any};

;[aecoln]

e under these circumstances, FLRA's Washington Regional Director determined that the
gency's conduct did not clearly and patently breach the March 2012 MOU, and dismissed
charge.

Wl'gile. both the ULPs and the subject grievance clearly relate to the issue of overtime hiring procedures and the
utllization of the Comrectional Services Roster program; as well s, the Local 408 MOU negotiated during the periad
October'26, 2011, to March 5, 2012, and partially executed in March 2012 - the A 1 have i

ual giret DS, iS8UeS leaal theories ¢ and B

B4

mste

ATa

As for the factual circumstances and issues...

The factual circumstance, issue or issues in the two ULP's and the subject grievance, as clarified by the Arbitrator's
examination of the total record were, and/or are;
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e In the first ULP, charge number WA-CA-12-051 3, which was
C agement as a wholg, the issue was that FCC management showed bad fs :

Correctional Services Roster program sfter ¢ reement had beg

ved one of the

¢ And, in the su
that the 2OME

The legal theories advanced in the two ULP's and the subject grievance, as clarified by the Arbitrator's examination
of the total record were, and/or are:

e In the first ULP, that the Agency, through the actions of FCC management as a whole,
showed bad faith in its bargaining ‘with. Local-408; thereby, violating specific statutory
provisions, 5§ USC §7116(a)(1, 2, 4, and 8).

¢ In the second ULP, that the Agency, through the actions of FCC management as a whole,
ropudiated and violated the FLRA approved Settlement Agreement and MOU exscuted by
FCC management and Local 408; thereby, violdting specific- statutory provisions; 5 USC
§7116(a)(1, 5, 7, and 8).

* And, in the subject grievance, that the Complex Warden violated a contract, the parties’
Master Agreement, including Sections 6 and 18, when he directed a new overtimoe hiring
procedure to go operational; which caused bargaining unit employees representsd by Local
408 to suffer an adverse action in violation of govemment-wide Federal procedures; as well
as, a different statute, the Back Pay Act, § USC 5596.

While a superficial reading of the two ULPs and the subject grisvance might lead one to conclude all three actions
rose from the same set of circumstances, invoived the same issues, and logal theories; the Arbitrator has

%erm;ined that his more thorough examination of gll the factors and parties’ actions prior to each complaint shows
arwise.

As to the Agency’s threshold argument that the_subject grievance is barred by § USC §7118(d) the
Arbitratorfinde.the:
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3. Joghl HisAsar advanced In each of the two ULPs and the subject grievance are
markedly different.'™ Therefore, the

TPointi les’ Master Agresment, Article 31, Section d, clearly provides that..."Griev

must be filed within forty (40) calendar days of the date of the alloged grievable cccurrencs...” [Emphasis added];
the Agency argues “Since the Union had awareness of an alleged violation occurring on July 3, 2013, then they
had 40 days to file their grievance, which would have expired on August 12, 2013. However, they did not file their
grievance until September 11, 201 3, or 30 days late.”

Here, the Aqency writes that the courts have held that “A knowing plaintiff has an obligation to file promptly or lose
his claim...”* and that Elkouri & Elkouni provides, among other things, “If the language of an agreement is clear
and unequivocal, an arbitrator generally will not give it a meaning other than that expressed...[that] Arbitrators
apply the principle that parties to a contract with full knowledge of its provisions and the significance of its
language...expect the parties to pay duse respect to the griovance procedures, not only by using it, but also by
observing its formal requirements.” To further support its argument, the Agency, cites eleven arbitration
decisions/awards involving the BOP and application of its MA. "

The Union, hmva&_mﬂmmwmmmmmmmmammﬁﬁﬁn only gave notice
SEhISRENT SRt-the-new-overtime-pracadures on August 11, 2013, Therefore, the Union had to wait to
see; first if the new procedures were actually implemented, then to identify the impact their implementation had on
BUE's represented by Local 408. The Union filed the subject grievance on September 11, 2013, thirty-two (32)
calendar days after the new policies were scheduled to be implemented. However, as Local 408's President
!‘4__31,_3 D13, that the implementati e Rew procatures was

b S ZHAGHT LS 3 B B es ne
s ore, it wasn't until when the new system was sufficiently

T

sifeieieie

, in the month of
operational, that the Union became fully aware of the new procedure’s impact on its BUEs. As already noted, the
subject grievance was filed on September 11, 2013, thirty-two (32) calendar days after the new policies were
scheduled to be implemented, and well within the forty calendar days prescribed in Article 31 (d) of the MA.
However, the Union contends, since the impact of the change in procedures on BUES was not fully appreciated
until late in August, it could have waited until later in September to file the grievance and still have been timely.

F

Finally, the Union notes that the Agency, in its reply to the subject grievance, failed to argue that the grievance was
untimely filed. In fact, the Union claims the timeliness issue was not raised, even as a threshold issue, until the
administrative conference. Moreover, the Union also points out that the Arbitrator afforded the parties the
Opportunity to file pre-hearing briefs; and, while the Union took advantage of this offer, the Agency failed to submit
any pre-hearing brief or other documentation raising any threshold issues, much less the issue of timeless.

Accordingly, the Union argues that the Agency's threshold issue regarding the alleged untimefiness of the
grievance should be dismissed.

While the Agencys arguments on timeliness highlights, the first part of Articie 31, Saction d, the Arbitrator believes
that it is the wording later in Section d, that needs to be considered, specifically,
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"...If a party becomes aware of an alleged grievable event more than forty (40) calendar days
after its the arievance must be filed within forty (4 ale: days from the date
Al Q& ANce can reasanab 0e_expacieq {0 _nhave are ot _me
occurrence. A grievance can be filed for violations within the life of this contract, howsver,
where the statutes provide for a longer filing period, then the statutory period would control.”

[Emphasis added]

The Agency’s argument that the forty calendar-day period
commenced on July 3, 2013, because the Unio:
the reason and essence of the communication received by
2013, memorandum was sent to Local 408's President. to:

remind him that:

during which the Unicn should have filed its grievance

n “became aware of an alleged violation® on that date totally ignores

the Union on that date. The Complax Warden'’s _July 3

o ‘“a meeting was held on July 1, 2013, in which Local 408 was invited but
declined to attend”; and,

inform him that:

during the July 1% meeting the [attending] “parties discussed the agency's
counter proposal for Complex overtime procedures and came to an
agreement on a Memorandum of Understanding that [the parties thought
was] in line with the Master Agreement”:

the “agreement was prepared and signed by Local 405 and Local 3696";

he was “encouraged to [also] sign [the agreement]’;

the “agreement {would] take effect August 11, 2013"; and

the “February Memorandum of Understanding [executed by FCC Butner and

Iﬁoeal 408, with FLRA approval, was] ineffective and {would] no longer be
onored.”

o

The Union's counter argument that the g

was _not FCC Butner management’s decision to push forward for an agreement on a

complex-wide overtime hiring procedure, or its resulting approval of an agreement and
execution of a new MOU with only two of the three AFGE Locals being a parly; but,

was the Complex Warden's dsclaration that the
and would no longer be honored, coupled with his
and the complex-wide overtime procedures that

As to the

8. date the grievable action
set for the MOU executed

subject

6. subject grievance

Article 31, Section d; and therefore,

Agency’s threshold argument that the subject
not filed In a timely manner, the Arbitrator finds that the:

cccurred was August 11,
overtime hiring procedures would go into
grievance within forty calendar-days

was filed in a timely manner,

grievance is procedurally deficient because it was

m&mﬁdahmocomploxwm.en
Local 3886 and its new complox-wide
effect; therefore, the Unlon had to file the
from August 11, 2013; '

In accordance with the parties’ MA,
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7. Agency’s threshold argument that the grievance was untimely is without merit.

The Agency’s third and last threshold challenge is that the subject grievance was filed with the wrong office. Here
again the Agency points out that the MA, Article 31, Section f 1, specifically provides:

“...when filing a grievance, the grievance will be filed with the Chisf Executive Officer of the
institutionfacility, if the grievance pertains to the action of an individual for which the Chief
Executive Officer of the institution/facility has disciplinary authority over....”

Here the Agency focuses on that part of the grievance regarding BUEs represented by the Union having been
skipped over when assigning overtime and/or not allowed to sign-up on overtime gign-up shests. Then, citing

The Union points out that Article 31, Section f 2, provides, in part:

“...when fling a grievance against the Chief Executive Officer of an institutionffacility... the
grisvance will be filed with the appropriate Reglonal Director.”

Accordingly, the Union argues that the subject grievance was filed against the Complex Warden for the decisions
and actions he made and took that resulted in:

» the MOU executed by FCC Butner and Local 408 with the approval of the FLRA being
ignored and not heonored;

) anewMOUexewtedwithonlytwoofthethreaAFGELocalsatBuherusedastha

mechanism to have a complex-wide overtime hiring procedure established and
activated; and

* BUESs represented by Local 408 being adversely affected by being skipped over in the

a:signment of overtime and/or ied the opportunity to sign up on overtime sign-up
sheets,

Finally, as previously mentioned, the Arbitrator appreciates the emphasis the Agency, and to a lesser degree the
Union, has placed in its arguments on all the threshold questions regarding the wording of the parties’

iqdud!ng the declaration in Article 32, Section h, that “the arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from,
disregard, alter, or modify any of the terms of...this Agreement..." The Arbitrator has also noted the Agency's
portrayal of the arbitrable guidance found in Elkouri & Elkouri, However, it must be remembered that, that learned
text also advises that the “language of mathematics is precise. The English language is not. Even when the
greatest care is employed, ambiguity of meaning can resuit ® “[Tlhe Arbitrator, as the parties’ designated “reader’
of the contract, °is their joint elter ego for the purpose of striking whatever supplementary bargain is necessary to
handle the anﬁdqated unanticipated omissions of the initial agreement.” Therefore, it is important to remember that
“...the “overarching principle of contract interpretation” requires ascertainment of meaning in light of “all the

As to the Agency’s threshold argument that the $subject grievance is procedural deficient because It was
filed with the wrong office, the Arbitrator finds that the: P v

8. Union filed the subject grievance against the FCC Butner Complex Warden for
decisions and actions he personally made,
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9.~grievance was-filed-properly-and.in.accardance it
Article 31, Section f 2, with the appropriate Regional

o v md gtk

as, in post-hearing submittals included arguments which may not have been mentioned in the summaries of their
positions and narratives discussed above. Nevertheless, the Arbitrator has fully considered_all thq‘ paramount
arguments made. If a particular nuance or slant of a parties’ argument has not bgen mentioned in either the
summary of the parties’ position or narrative presented above it is because the Arbitrator did not find the point
persuasive or that his finding made it moot. ' -

B. Regarding the merits of the subject grievance.

As discussed, analyzed and explained above, g KRGS thic

Did the Agency violate the provisions of Federal law, regulations, and/or the parties' Master
Agreement (MA) when it decided a memorandum of understanding (MOU) between it and Local
408 was ineffective and would no longer be honored; then, implemented overtime hiring
procedures basad on a different MOU with Locals 405 and 3696; and, in so doing, skipped over
bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408 when overtime was offsred and assigned;
thereby, adversely affecting bargaining unit:-employees represented by Local 408? If so, what
should the remedy be?

As the Agency points out, the Union brought forth the allegations in the subject grievancs, somthe burden of
persuasion is on them. However, the burden of producing evidence in rebuttal is on the Agency.'” Both parties’

position on the merits of this case are summarized and presented above and need not be re-stated here. It is
sufficient to note only that...

Local 408 strongly argues that:
' ¢ it represents a specific identifiable group of BUES, just like the other Union Locals;

e the Agency has historically recognized this Local Union representation of
institutionalfacility staff;

* for years each Local negotiated and administered its own MOU on overtime hiring
pracedures, which were seen as in compliance with Article 18, Section p1;

* the procedures by which the BUEs represented by Local 408 are to receive overtime
assignments were spelled cut in the MOouU it s@'ned with FCC Butner management, with
the approval of FLRA, on February 25, 2013;% and

e the actions by the Complex Warden on August 11, 2013, to establish g complex-wide
overtime hiring procedire through executian of the new MOU with only two of the three
Locals at Butner, set aside and not honor Local 408's MOU, and crder the use of the
newly established procedures have caused BUEs to be adversely effected and suffer
monetary lost by being skipped over in the assignment of overtime.

The Agency, just as strongly disagrees, arguing that:

o &l bargé!ning unit employees at FCC Butner are covered by the parties'’ Master
Agreement;

 the Master Agresment identifies the Union and exclusive ve as the Coungil
of Prison Locals; ' " [oprmsniaiive 8 the Co

 the duty to bargain resides only at the leve! of the exclusive representative;
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o the sole dispute in the case comes down to the provisions of Article 18, Section p 1; and

¢ the term “employees in the bargaining unit” as used in Section p 1, refers to “all
bargaining unit employees not those reprasented by a particular local.”

With regard to the arguments that: the Union, Local 408, does or doesn't represent a specific group of bargaining
unit employees; the duty to bargain resides only at the level of the exclusive representative; and whether or not
the Agency has histerically recognized and accepted the Local Union role and applicability of singularly negotiated
MOUs —

A review of the key provisions of the parties’ agreement'® clearly shows that:

e AFGE gnd the Council of Prison Locals are the recognized exclusive representative of
all BUEs in the Bureau. However, the racard shows, and careful reading of the MA
reveals, that functionally the Council's duty relates only to the nagotiation. of the Master
Agreement arid handling Bureau-wids and multi-institution issues and grievances. And,

¢ Starting with the Preamble, the MA envisions, directs and/or allows representation and
negotiation at the institutionalffacility level through AFGE Locals'™®, As is noted 2bove —
Article 2 of the MA, dealing with “Joint Labor Management Relations® provides in Section
f that “The parties at the national level endorse the concept of regular labor management
meetings at the local level...[and thet)...The local
anagement meetings will be negotiated locall Article 3, dealing with “Govem!
Regulations® the MA provides in Section a 1, “...local supplemental agreements will take
precedence over any Agency Issuance derived or generated at the local level'...[and] in
Section d 5, “...when locally-proposed policy issuances are made, the local Union
President will be notified...and the manner in which i i
parallel this article.” And, Article 18, Section p,
| SgaIGiNg _overtimes ,;::u NSNS [T 03 S 2GS ! o
negotiation and/or local negotiations’ is. mentioned some eleven times in the ‘MA; the
term “Local President and/or Local Union President” is mentioned some fourteen times;
and the term “Local supplemental agreement(s)” is mentioned some five times. Ground

rules for local negotiation of supplemental agresments are even presented as an
appendix o the MA. And,

¢ Article 9 of the MA, which is titled “Negotiations at the Local Level® shows the parties’
fully anticipated and planned for AFGE Locals and institutionalffacility management to
negotiate and execute binding contracts. While soms of the MA’s provisions providing
for Local negotiation are permissive, that is provide that the subject may be negotiated:
Several provisions are not permissive, and requjre negotiation of the atter at the
onal level, ie., Article 2, Section f, which provides “The actual procedures
for local labor management mestings wi : ." Furthermore, the MA
provides for two different types of local agreements, the memorandum of understanding
(MOU) and Ifgreal supp!ementa;y- agreements sg.sSAs): and in Article 9 fully describes the
procedures for negotiating an executing - LSAs can be initially negotiated
during a specific period after the execution of the MA. They can address mul:::g
provisions and/or issues; in fact, the MA allows Local parties to include any matter in the
LSA which does not specifically confiict with Article 9 and the MA. And, the MA
provides that only one LSA gy e _neqotiated at each institutionfacility. However,
LSAs are not binding on the Union unless ratified by the Local's membership. LSAs
expire upon the same date as the Master Agreement and, if the MA’s life is extended
beyond the scheduled expiration- date for any reason, local supplemental agresments
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same manner as the MA. MOUs, like LSAs expire when the supporting Master
Agreement expires. And, '

e The Master Agreement clearly provides that “This Agreement ar_ld such supplementary
agreements and memorandums of understanding by both parties as may be agreed

upon hereunder from time to time, together constitute a collective agreement between
the Agency and the Union.”

As to the role and characterization of Local 408 — While neither the Agency nor the Union, at hearing or in
submittals, clearly and distinctly described and characterized the Union's full recognition; the Arbitrator, therefore,
characterizes and understands that recognition as — The American Federation of Goverqment Employe_es, AFL-
CIO, Council of Prison Locals (normally referred to simply as AFGE), is the exclusive representative of a
nationwide consolidated bargaining unit of employees of the Federal Bureau of Prisons and the American
Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO, Council of Prison Locals, Local 408 (or any other of the BOP

Locals, normally referred to simply as the Union) js an agent and affiliate of AFGE for the purpose of representing
bargaining unit employees &t the institutional/facility level, i.e., Butner FCC.

Accordingly, based on the preponderance of the evidence, the Arbitrator finds that:

11."the Agency’s argument that Local 408 does not “represent” a specific group of
bargaining unit employees is without merit. The parties’ MA clearly establishes a specific
role for the AFGE Locals operating as the Union’s agent and affiliate responsible for
representing a specific group of BUES, that is the employees within the institutionffacility, the
Local is charged with representing. The MA also, provides in Article 7, Section k, that “[T]he
Union and the Employer recognize the role of the Union at the local level.”

Here the Arbitrator notes the Agency’s contention that “a key problem with the subject case is
that the Union, AFGE, has established three different locals at the Butner Complex...." ltis the
Arbitrator's opinion that the parties, when they negotiated the Master Agreement(s), clearly
understood that the Locals, as an agent and affiliate of AFGE for the purpose of representing
bargaining unit employees at the institutionalffacility level, play an important role in the over-all
labor-management relationship. This relationship, as provided for in the MA, also clearly is
centered on the AFGE Local representing BUES "within the individual institution/facility.” The
problem isn't that AFGE established three different Locals at Butner — each Local historically has
an "institutional relationship and responsibility” (e.g., Local 408's responsibility for representation
of BUEs in the FMC and FCI-2; Local 3696's responsibility for BUEs in FCI-1, and Local 405's
responsibility for LSCI). The problem is the development and establishment of the Complex
structure. With the development of the Complex is the historic institutional/facility relationship
still with the individual institutions/facilities that make up a Complex or is it now only with the
Complex. While the Locals at Butner sought to address the centralization of

departments/functions those actions did not address the over-arching issue of the establishment
of the Complex itself.

12. the Agency’s argument that the duty to bargain resides only at the level of the
exclusive representative is without merit. While, the Arbitrator acknowledges the Agency
cited and included the caveat “absent an agreement between the parties providing for local
negotiations or other delegation of authority” in its brief; still the argument stressed the negative
and de-emphasized the caveat. It was clear to the Arbitrator that the Agency wanted a ruling
negating local bargaining. However, the parties’ MA clearly and unequivacally provides for, and
in some cases requires, institutional/facility or local bargaining.

13. the parties’ Master Agreement clearly recognizes and accepts the Local Union role
and applicability of singularly negotiated MOUs. Furthermore, Butner FCC management and
the three AFGE Locals representing BUEs, working in specific Butner institutions, Local 3696
representing FCI-1, Local 405 representing the LSCI, and Local 408 representing FCI-2 and the
FMC, have a history of negofiating, executing, and operating in accordance with singularly
negotiated MOUSs, including those accepted as complying with the requirements of Article 18,
Section p, providing overtime hiring procedures calling for “first consideration of Local BUEs";
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and, that this more than fifteen year history of mutual acceptance and use of sud:u MOUs
constitutes an established pattern of behavior involving a “condition of employment” qualifying as
a past-practice,'2 :

As to the provisions of Article 18, Section p...

represented within FCI-1 and LSCI); all seen and accepted as being in complianc1e13with Article 18, Section p 1;
clearly establish a past-practice of such behavior, which cannot know be disclaimed.

Accordingly, based on the preponderance of the evidence, the Arbitrator finds that:

14. the.Agency's argument that “employees in the bargaining unit,” as used in Section p
1, refers to “all bargaining unit employees not those represented by a particular local;” is
without merit: The record shows that Article 18, Section P, begins with the phrase “Specific
procedures regarding overtime assignments may be negotiated locally;” and that, historically,
Butner management has accepted and operated within the confines of Locally negotiated MOUs
providing for overtime hiring procedures applicable to each separate institution for BUEs
represented by each individual Local, all having been seen and understood as complying with
the provisions of Article 18, Section p; including the understanding that the individual Local
represented a specific group of BUEs and their MOU provided for “first consideration of that
group of BUEs for overtime assignments within the institution or involving inmates in the
institution represented by that Local.” Management cannot now claim the term bargaining unit
employees as used in Section p applies to all bargaining unit employees not to a singular group
of BUEs employed in an individual institution represented by an individual Local,

Here the Arbitrator notes the Agency’s position that “an arbitrator has already defined Article 18,
Section p's provision for FCC Butner” To support its position the Agency cites two specific
cases - Federal Bureau of Prisons and AFGE, Local 33, FMCS Case No. 06-01919 decided
September 6, 2008, by Arbitrator Christopher Honeyman and DOJ, FBOP, FCC Butner and
AFGE, Local 405, FMCS Case No. 11-51176 decided July 23, 2012, by Arbitrator J. Wood,
AFGE, Council of Prison Locals, Local 405 and U.S. DOJ, FBOP, FCC Butner 67 FLRA 108
(2014). Here the Agency misreads both cited decisions. Honeyman did not address the
question of whether the term “bargaining unit employee” as used in Article 18, Section p 1,
means all BUEs throughout the Bureau of BUEs as represented by an AFGE Local at the
institutional/facility level; it addressed the applicability of 5 CFR 551.432 and the proper pay for
em;_:loyees on temporary duty, including der diem pay, finding against the Agency. As for

Tumin_g to the first part of the issue in question -- Did the Agency violate the Provisions of Federal law,
regulations, and/or the parties’ Master Agreement (MA) when it decided a memorandum of understanding (MOU)
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between it and Local 408 was ineffective and would no longer be honored; then, implemented overtime hiring
procedures based on a different MOU with Locals 405 and 36967

The record shows that during the pericd October 26, 2011, through March 5, 2012, AFGE Local 408 and FCC
management conducted negotiations on the issue of overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the Correctional
Services Roster program for BUEs represented by Local 408 in FCI-2 and the FMC. Agreegtent was reached and
on March 5, 2012, Local 408's President and the FCC Complex Warden signed the Local specific’ MOU.
Subsequently, institutional level management called for negotiations on a oomplex-.wide overtime hiring: procedure
and, along with Locals 3696 and 405, Local 408 participated ifi these negotiations — During which the same
institutional level manager(s) refused to sign the L.ocal 4068’ MOU and announced it was “taken off the table”; which
resulted in Local 408 filing a ULP. Then, on February 25, 2013, with the assistance, involvement, and approval of
the FLRA, FCC Butner management and Local 408 executed the March 5, 2012, MOU, togsther with a settiement
agreement and FLRA dismissed the ULP. Shortly thereafter, the same institutional level manager who initially
callad for negotiations on a complex-wide overtime hiring procedure, tabled and refusad to sign Local 408's MOU
prior to the February 25, 2013, settiement agreement; again called for negotiations on a complex-wide overtime
hiring procedure. This time Local 408 refused to participate in the negotiations on the complex-wide overtime
hiring procedure; and on July 3, 2013, the Complex Warden notified Local 408 that the MOU executed on February
25, 2013, with the approval of FLRA, was ineffective, invalid, and would no longer be honored. The Complex
Warden also informed Local 408 that a MOU had been signed with Locals 3696 and 405 on a complex-wide
overtime hiring procedure which would go into effect August 11, 2013. Shortly, thereafter, on July 25; 2013, Local
408 filed a second ULP alleging that FCC management repudiated and violated the FLRA Settlemient Agreement.

The Agency claims the actions by FCC management regarding the MOU executed with Local 408 on February 25,
2013, ailowed for further negotiations on the overtime hiring procedures and with Local 408's refusal to participate
in the further negotiations, management therefore, was justified in no-longer honoring the MOU-and entering into
the new MOU:with Locals 3896 and 405, ;

Without further comment on FLRA actions and decisions relating to either of the two ULP's filed by Local 408,
since | have already addressed the two ULPs and found they did not bar the subject grisvance — The Arbitrator
does not agree with the Agency’s defense.

Based on the Arbitrator's reading of the parties’' MA, meLomeOUmsnmoﬁamdaMawamedbyme
Butner Complex Warden on March 5, 2012;-as-to-whether or not that agreement was required to be gccepted and
signed by the individual institution Wardens is -questionable; nevertheless, the )ement was ultimately fully
executed on February 26, 2013. Under the provisions of tho partiés MA that MOU-became  part of the “coliective

Z2849r-MOU aliowed for new negotiations conceming the
within'its right to proceed as it did, and the Local 408 waived
Si:2g8in:ne.Aritrator disagrees..

g 'B-EBntention 4 Eebraapy»2§
for oveitime, therefore, management was'
its rights by refusing to participate in the new negotia

;Again. without commenting on FLRA's reading of the March 2012 MOU, other than no ng that Authority found the
language [50 be] capable of more than one interpretation;® and, that “Questions of interpretation are for an
arbitrator....,” we will now look atthe provisions of the:March 2012’MOU. Clearly interpretation of the wording in the
March 2012 MOU must be based on knowledge of the provisions of the parties’ MA; and, an understanding of the
history of FCC Butner and its negatiation, exacution, and administration of MOU's covering overtime hiring
m'»mnlt; tgmaAFa(':‘“E’ Locals, V\:ithout :cddmssing. any other provisions of the March 2012 MOU, other
Local and institutional speci ent; let's consider what the par ‘providing i

section titted “Effects on Other MOUs:* That?;‘;tqion :gaeme vmsm; pefies are providing in the

procedures

K 4] ¢ RS

“This MOU supersedes all previous MOU's with dealing with Overtime signed by the Agency and
Local 408. Any new negotiations conceming the procedure for overtime will review the
procedures listed here and be incorporated for negotiation in the new negotiations. Should any
issues/concems arise as a resuit of this MOU, the Agency and Local 0408 &gree to discuss them
within seven (7) working days of notification of the issue or concem.” [Wording corrected]
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This provision can only be interpreted to be addressing matters involving the parties signing the MOU, that is, FCC
management and Local 408. It supersedes only MOUs “dealing with Overtime” previously executed by the signing
parties, FCC management and Local 408. This provision has abs lutely no impact on anything invalvin arties
other than FCC management and L | 408. The phrase “Any new negotiations concerning the procedures for
overtime..." concerns only actions involving FCC management and Local 408 — Therefore, since Local 408's

representational responsibility is limited to matters concerning BUES it represents, those working in FCI-2 and
FMC, the phrase can only be addressing new negotiations between FCC management and Local 408 “concem_ing
the procedures for overtime for BUEs and in institutions where Local 408 has representational responsibility.”

Should FCC management and Local 408, therefore, open new negotiations concerning procedures for overtime in
FCI-2 andfor FMC, or any new institution where Local 408 has assumed representational responsibility; the
procedures outlined in the March 2012 MOU are to be reviewed and incorporated into the negotiations for any new
agreement being negotiated by FCC management and Local 408. This provision, in no way. is an invitation to

negotiate; nor s it mandating that anyone (other than those who are signature to the 2012 MOU) review the
overtime procedures outlined in the March 2012 MOU and incorporate those procedures into_the negotiation for
any other new overtime dures that involve any other parties or a r_institutions. Therefore, the cited
provision was not an invitation to_open new negotiations on_overtime procedures. Especially since the
requirements of the MA mandate that parties to an executed MOU (or LSA) must mutually agree to reopen
negotiations on, or amend, the provisions of the executed agresment. Furthermore, the cited provision clearly

requires that any questions/concemns that arise regarding the MOU (again those must be issues/concerns by/of the
signature parties) be discussed.

As to that part of the Agency’s argument that Local 408, by refusing to participate in the re-opened complex-wide
overtime procedure negotiations, waived any rights — The Arbitrator notes that Local 408 and FCC Butner had
already negotiated overtime hiring procedures and the use of the Correctional Services Roster program and
memorialized their agreement in the MOU signed initially by the then Complex Warden on March 5, 2012, then fully

Accordingly, based on the preponderance of the evidence, the Arbitrator finds that:

As to the whether or not the Agency violated Federal law, regulations, and/or the parties’ Master Agreement (MA)
when it implemented overtime hiring procedures based on a different MOU with Locals 405 and 3696.

The question of whether or not the Agency/FCC Butner management can execute and participate in an agreement
between more than one party (AFGE Local) is not before this Arbitrator. Therefore, he renders no opinion or
judgement regarding the legality of the Memorandum of Understanding executed July 1 and 2, 2013, between FCC
management and Locals 405 and 3696, However, the Arbitrator does observe the following:

® The cited MOU is not in the format observed in other MOUs that are a matter of record in
this case. For example the heading of the MOU executed by FCC management and Local
408 on overtime hiring procedures for FCI-2/FMC in 2010 and in 2013 had a heading which
clearly provided that the parties were the “Council of Prison Locals, Local 408 (Union) and

:'I;ia lI;I%«':igral Correctional Complex, Butner, NC (Agency) and clearly identified the subject of
e ;
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e The cited three-party MOU, while providing in paragraph number 1 that "Eaa_::r) institution will
maintain their current roster program” proceeds to change the provisions of t'hose
institutional singular/Local specific MOU established programs. Here the_ parties’ MA
provides that local agreements can only be reopened, modified, amended with the mutual

consent of the originating parties.

e Finally, the record shows:if there is to be a multi-party agreement at the institutianalffaplhty
level which involves AFGE  Locals that have institutional specific rapresentgnon_a_l :
responsibilities, that all of the Locals within that structure must agree on such a rrgult!-parly
agreement; further, the MA appears to provide that such agreements will not be binding on
the Union unless ratified by the membership.

Accordingly, based on the preponderance of the evidence, the Arbitrator finds that:

16. the Agency [through the actions of the FCC Butner Complex Warden, as well as, one
or more institutional level Wardens at Butner] violated the provisions of the parties’
Master Agreement (MA) when it implemented overtime hiring procedures based on a
different MOU with Locals 405 and 3696.

Now turning to the last part of the issue — “and, in so doing, skipped over bargaining unit employees
represented by Local 408 when overtime was offered and assigned; thereby, adversely affecting bargaining.unit
employees represented by Local 408."

As outlined and discussed above, the Union reviewed data from overtime sign-up lists, prior to and after the
combined roster was implemented and the overtime hiring procedure changed, to determine the effect on BUEs
represented by Local 408. That review looked at a sampling of overtime assigned/worked during eleven (11) pay
periods from August 2013 through June 2015. The review found many instances where BUESs represented by
Local 408 were skipped in the assignment of overtime; some of which occurred on numerous occasions and in
various scenarios. Specifically, the review noted that:

e Every time that a BUE not represented by Local 408 was assigned/worked overtime within

institutions/departments/posts represented by Local 408, a BUE represented by Local 408
had been skipped over.

o Whenever a non-bargaining unit employee was assigned/worked overtime in an

institution/department/post represented by Local 408, a BUE represented by Local 408 had
been skipped over. And,

¢ Where employees who were graded GS-12 and above, who should not have been allowed
to work overtime, worked overtime: not only BUEs represented by Local 408, but BUEs
represented by Locals 3696 and 405 were skipped over.

The_ Union also submitted evidence that every time “List Exempt Overtime Logs” were used to make overtime
assignments, which it claims should be only in emergency circumstances, there was some abuse. For example,
the Union found instances where employees were assigned/worked overtime continuously over short periods of
time through the use of the “List Exempt” provision, which the Union claims would be almost impossible.

In'order to quantify the 'esﬁmated amount of overtime pay BUEs represented by Local 408 were denied by being
skipped over; the Union's Study used the salary for grade GS-08, step 6, as the average pay of a BUE represented

by Local 408. Admitting that its review was not a * rofessional study;” and, that there might be e
points out that their review clearly showed: 4 4 : 0 p e ben

e During the August — October 2013 period BUESs represented by Local 408 were skipped over

for an estfmated 6,154 hours of overtime; at an estimated hourly rate of $40.04 that amounts
to approximately $246,406.00 in missed overtime pay.
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* In November 2013 BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over for an estimatqd
4,584 hours, at the estimated hourly rate of $40.04 that amounted to some $183,943.00 in
missed overtime pay.

* In December 2013 BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over for an estimated
2,064 hours, losing some $82,643.00 in overtime pay.

¢ In January 2014 BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over for an estimated 1,720
hours, losing some $68,869.00 in overtime pay.

* In July 2014 BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over for an estimated 5,184
hours, losing some $207,567.00 in overtime pay.

* And, in June 2015 BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over for an estimated
2,672 hours, losing some $1 06,987.00 in overtime pay.

Union argues that itslj _
Es; represented by Local 408, were skipped over and lost out on an estimated 22,388 hours of overtime;
and, were therefors, deprived of an estimated $896,415.00 of overtime pay.

It should be noted that the Agency, while raising questions during Local 408's Chief Steward and President's

testimony on the Union's review process and findings, presented'no counter testimony and offered no comments
on the review and its findings through its past-hearing brief.

Accordingly, based on the preponderance of the evidence, the Arbitrator finds that:

17. the preponderance of the evidence presented by the Union clearly shows that BUEs
represented-by Local 408; were Skipped over'in the assignment/hiring of overtime during
the period August 2013 through June 2015 when FCC Butner was operating under the
new overtime hiring procedures established through its MOU with Locals 3698 and 405 as
directed by the Complex Warden. And,

18. this action constituted a violation of the parties’ Master Agreement.

As to whether or not the actions of the Agency [through and by the actions of the FCC Butner Complex Warden]
constituted an unjustified and unwarranted personnel action — The Arbitrator notes that the FLRA has ruled that a
violation of a collective bargaining agreement constitutes an unjustified or unwarranted personnel action, '

Accordingly, based on the preponderance of the evidence, the Arbitrator finds that:

20. the actions of the Agency [through and by the direction of the FCC Butner Complex
Warden] resulted in the withdrawal or reduction of all or part of the pay, allowances, or
diffeil;gntials of the affected BUEs represented by Local 408 in violation of the Back Pay
Act.

Having found the actions of the Agency [through and by the direction of the FCC Butner Complex Warden]

constituted a violation of the Back Pay Act, based on the Preponderance of the evidence, the Arbitrator further
finds that:

21. the Aggng;xflﬂurough the-actions of the FCC Butner Complex Warden, as well as, one
Or more institutional leve} Wardens at Butner] violated Federal law and/or regulations,
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an estimated 22,388 hours of overtime and an estimated. $896,415.00 of overtime pay during the period August
2018 through June 2015; the exact number of BUEs affected, the exact amount of overtime lost, and the exact
amount of individual loss has not yet been determined,

Accordingly, the Arbitrator notes that:

» the Back Pay Act provides in part that an employee ‘“is entitled, on cormection of the
persennel action, to recsive, for the period for which the personnel action was in effect ~

© an amount equal to all or any part of the pay, allowances, or differentials, as
applicable which the employee nomally would have earned or received during the
period if the personnel action had not occurred, less any amounts eamed by the
employee through other employment during that period; and

o reasonable attorney fees related to the personnel action which, with respect to any
decision relating to an unfair labor practice or‘a grievance processed....”

* the.FLRA has ruled'" that the threshold requirement for entitiement of attomey’s fees under
the BPA is a finding that the grievant was affected by an unjustified or unwarranted
personnel action, which resulted in the withdrawal or reduction of the grievant's pay,
allowances, or differentials. Once such a finding is made, the BPA further requires that an
award of attomey’s fees be:

o in conjunction with an award of back pay to the grievant on comection of the
personnel action;

o reasonable and related to the personnel action; and

o in accordance with the standards established under 5 USC 7701(g) which pertain to
: attorney-fee awards issued by the Merit Systems-Protection Board,

e the FLRA has also ruled that the threshold requirement for an award of attomey’s fees under
the BPA is a finding that the grievant. was affected by an unjustified or unwarranted
personnel action, which resuited in the withdrawal or reduction of the grievant's pay,
allowances, or differentials. Onice such a finding is made, fees may be awarded in
accordance with the standards established in 5 USC 7701(g)."'® And,

* inorder to obtain fees, a party must prevail in the arbitration.'® And,

o to qualify as a prevailing party, an individual must have received "an enforceable
judgment or sattlement” which directly bensfited him or her. For example, an
s reduction of a suspension‘to a repiimand qualified the grievant as the

prevaliing party.'® Also,

© an individual may be a prevailing party when he or she prevails on one theory of the
case but falls under another theory. ' ’ ory

ugagmateuniomhas:askedforitta

In view of the findings identified and discussed above it is the Arbitrator's conclusion that it is unnecessary to

address any of the other lesser arguments rajsed by the Agency and Union because they were imelevan
Superflucus, redundant, rendered moot, and of.no pefsuasive valug, © se they jevant,

Based on the preponderance of the evidsnco, the Arbitrator additionally finds:

As noted and explained above, the parties’ Master Agreement clearly provides for local level negotiations of
matters as specifically addressed in various articles and sections. Additionally, the MA specifically provides in

Article 9, Section g, that only one supplemental agreement (LSA) may be negotiated at each institutionffacility.
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Since the MA has very specific provisions regarding the number of LSAs that can be negotiated, the time period
when LSAs can be negotiated:; as well as, the review, approval, modification, and duration of LSAs - Based on the
testimony of the President of the Council of Prison Locals'?, that MOUs are considered to be basically the same
as LSAs; the Arbitrator concludes that MOUs, while not having to go through the same review and approval
process as LSAs, not being limited in numbers like LSAs, or not being limited as to when they can be negotiated
like LSAs; nevertheless must be amended/modified in the same manner as LSAs; and, like LSAs expire on the
same date as the Master Agreement, unless extended in the same manner as LSAs.'?

Accordingly, just as the Arbitrator has found that the Local 408, March 2012 MOU, executed on February
25, 2013, and the three-party MOU executed by the FCC Butner and AFGE Locals 3696 and 405 on July 1
and 2, 2013, were negotiated and executed in accordance with the parties’ MA and “constituted part of the
collective agreement between the Agency and the Union;” the Arbitrator based on the record as provided
by the parties finds that:

22. both the Local 408, March 2012 MOU, executed on February 25, 2013, and the three-
party MOU executed by the FCC Butner and AFGE Locals 3696 and 405 on July 1 and 2,
2013, were not extended and/or renegotiated with the consent of all parties in accordance
with provisions of the MA when the Master Agreement expired on or about May 24, 2014,
and the current Master Agreement became effective, therefore, both MOUs expired on the
date the previous MA expired.

That being the cass, if FCC Butner management continued to apply the provisions of the three-party MOU relating
to overtime hiring procedures past the expiration of the old MA, into the period covered by the new MA, and

beyond, without properly extending the MOU and/or renegotiating under the provisions of the new MA; then the
Arbitrator finds:

23. such action is in violation of the parties’ Master Agreement [since the applicable
provisions of both the old and the new Master Agreements are basically the same] and, if
BUEs represented by Local 408 continued to be skipped over in overtime assignments,
the actions of FCC management have caused that continued adverse action on each of
the effected BUEs,

Finally, the Arbitrator takes special note regarding findings 17 through 20 as provided above and acknowledges
that while the preponderance of the evidence presented by Local 408 clearly and sufficiently shows that BUEs
represented by Local 408 were:

® skipped over in the assignment/hiring of overtime during the period August 2013 through
June 2015 when FCC Butner was operating under the new overtime hiring procedures

established through its MOU with Locals 3696 and 405 as directed by the Complex Warden;
which

e constituted a violation of the parties’ Master Agreement: and was

® an unjustified and unwarranted personnel action against the bargaining unit employees
represented by Local 408; which

* resulted in the withdrawal or reduction of all or part of the pay, allowances, or differentials of
the affected BUEs represented by Local 408 in violation of the Back Pay Act.

While_ the evidence presented by Local 408 through testimony and documentation met the Union’s burden of proof
sufﬁcigntly to allow the findings as presented and explained above; the evidence presented was not sufficient to
establish_the._individual identity_of each BUE affected by name, position/job - classification (title, series, and
_gra.d.elstep.), with the exact amount of overtime hours they should have been assigned and were not; as well as the

dual _ ; employes whosactually was assigned and worked the overtime [name, position/job
classification (title, series, and grade/step)]. See required action below.
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Vil. Declsion and Award.

As provided in Elkouri an arbitrator may issue an interim award without the agreement of the parties;'** a;:g retain
jurisdiction so that their award is properly carried out and disagreements about the award can be resolved.

Accordingly, the following interim decision and award addresses the threshold issues raised and the merits of the
subject case and serves as the Arbitrator’s final and binding decision, in accordance with the provisions of the
parties’ Master Agreement, Article 32, Section h, regarding these matters; and may not be reconsidered by this
Arbitrator as it would be improper because it is beyond the scope of the arbitrator’s limited retention of jurisdiction.
The Arbitrator retains jurisdiction for an unspecified period-of time during which the parties are to gather and
present evidence of the fuli extent to which bérgaining:unit employees represented-by Local 408 have been
harmed and total amount of damages, costs, and fees to be assesssd.

As the issues to be answered by this decision were;

Is the subject grigvance barred by a previously filed ULP and/or procedurally flawed and,
therefore, not arbitrable? If not...

Did the Agency violate the provisions of Federal law, regulations, and/or the parties’ Master
Agreement (MA) when it decided a memorandum of understanding (MOU) between it and Local
408 was ineffective and would no longer be honored; then, implemented overtime hiring
praocedures based on a diffsrent MOU with Locals 406 and 3696; and, in so doing, skipped over
bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408 when overtime was offered and-assigried;
thereby, adverssly affecting bargaining unit employees represented by Local 4087 If so0, what
should the remedy be? ‘

Based on the Arbitrator’s finding as discussed ahove, itis the Arbitrator's decision that:
The subject grisvance, Identified as FLRA Cass number 14-50738-8, filed by AFGE Local 408, by and

through the actions of its President Anthony Little; on Seoptemiber 11, 2013, was propeny filed in
accordance with the provisions of the parties’ Master&ramnt,aspmvldédfoﬂ’nl\rﬂelo-ﬂ. Therefore -

The answer to the first part of the issue statement - Is the subject grisvance barred by a previously filed ULP
andfor procedurelly flawed and, th , not arbitrable? ~ Is No; the subject grievance Igﬂw%bya
previously filed ULP and/or procedurally flawed, therefore, It IS ARBITRABLE. ' S

bargaining unit employess represented by Local 4087 — is- YES; the Agency [through the actions of the ch

Butner Complex Warden] did violate the provisions of Federal law and ulations, as rel Back
Pay Act, § USC §56988, and the parties’ Master Agreement. e ated to the

'.'ﬁm':’ '

iestablish :»‘c-d:‘ B
executed on July 1 and

T ARt oy T ey 2 TR R B

* reinstate use of the institutional specific overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the
Correctional Services Roster program established by, and described in, the Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) initially executed betwesn FCC Butner and AFGE Local 408 by
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signature of Complex Warden Sarah Revalls on or about March 5, 2012, and fuili% executed
by FCC Butner and AFGE Local 408, with FLRA approval on February 25, 2013.

* review the process used by Local 408 to review overtime assigned/hired during the period
August 2013 through June 2015 to determine which BUEs representad by it had been

"‘\‘ ery o - H H H

¢ conduct a filj~a 4 _Worgtinh-raview of the officis =overtime-assignment/h
Jncluding-time and leay £-Otfier official_attende and.pay re

AURUSE 1120131

Herg.tne Arbitrator

LT

isification (title, series and grade/step)

o the total amount of overtime deprived for each identified and named BUE,
shown per month/year/ and grand total for the period in question, together
with the total dollar amount of pay, allowances,. benefits, or differentials lost
per monthiyear/ and grand totai for the period in question;

HEASGITIC

z ;ation (title, series and grade/step) of the employee
assign

8.and
who actually was orked the overtime [For example]'?": and
* the projected amount of time the parties will need to complete the review, data gathering,
and assembly of the information to be reported to the Arbitrator;

8.1he parties will need to report the information to the Arbitrator
9-Tega the findings and for/against damages, costs,

; DUSIWIONNRE i siciatic oo ol hipys) Lirrg
The FINDINGS and INTERIM DECISION as presented above are made pursuant to Article 32 of the parties’
Master Agreement; and mailed, per Section.g, to the address as provided by each parties’ representative/counse)
at the hearing. Therefore, in accordance with Article 32, Section d, of sald agresment the parties are directed to
pay the fees and costs of the undersigned Arbitrator &@s presented in his invcice as mailed under separate cover,

Willlam A. Dealy, Jr

, Jr Date: May 31, ,
Arbitrator (FMCS #3823 ey 31, 2016
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End Notes

! Arbitrator/Joint exhibit AlJ-T1...Testimony of Mr. Little, Transcript Vol. |, pgs.184-186.

2

AlJ4...Testimony of Mr. Hemingway, Vol. 1, pgs. 45-49...Grievance filed — U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Prisons form BP-
$176.037 dtd May 1884 Formal Griavance Form showed: 1. the grievant(s) as Local 408, FCC Butner; 2. the duty station as FMC/FC)-2, Butner
BOP; 3. the reprasentative of the grievani{e) as Anthony Little, President, Local 408; 4. the Informal resciution attempted with Labor
Management Relation Chairs, AW Manuel Coll and AW Jennifer Saad (Delegated Representatives of Warden Apker and Warden Dunbar); 8.
the Federal Prison System Directive, Executive Order, Statute vidlation aamesuscnw.m-ummeemmmsm 18, and the
Back Pay Act; 6. In what way ware each of the [identified diractives, orders, statutes, eto.] viclated...[the following statement was provided]..."On
8/20/13, Complax Warden Apker violated Local 408's Overtime Hiring. Procedure by. changing the way Local 408 receives overtime. Local
408'sMOU states all Local 408 Bargalning Unit Staff wiil be_granted/assigned overtime according to thelr order on the-Copectional Services
Roster Program. When overtime Is assigned or refused, Local 408 bargaining staff name will rotate to the bottom of the overtime list. If no
eontactismadehtheﬂmmﬂmemm.aNocommmc)mmmaandmbmmwﬁmmefsmm. If overtime
m!gnmbmbdforwluhmmmnbyhﬂmmmmt, assign staff’s name will be reinstated to the original pace on the list prior to the
canceled assignment. Bargalning Unit Staff are being ekipped on the overtime sign up list dally. (l.e.) Bargalning Unit Staff can sign up on two
overtime list, so if one member signs up on the FMC/FCI2 roster and get overtime they would go to the bottom of the ilst. That same member
can slgn up for overtime on the FCI 1[Lowmaterandgetoverﬁmﬁmnextdaysosommlosmgcuppe¢ On 8/20/13 Local 408
Bargalining Unit Staff were not allowed to sign up on the FCl 1/Low overtime roster. Prior to Management changing Local 408 Overtime
Procedures, overtima distribution for Local 408 was fair and equitable. mmmmmwmmm Unit Staff."; 7.
the date(s) of the violation(s) were shown as Aug. 20, 2013 and continuously; 8, the requestad remedy was shown as..."All aftormey, legal fees
and expenses incurved In the processing of this griovance will be reimbursed by the agency, That a cease and deslst orders are issues against
the Agenoy from further action of this nature. The grievant wil suffer no reprisal, harassment, or intimidation, as a resuit of fiing this grievance,
That suitable compensations are granted and any cther remedy the arbitrator déems appropriate to make the employee whole.”; 9. the person

with whom filed was shown as Ike Eicheniaub; 10. the title shown as MXR Regional Director; 11. a signature of the reciplent of the grievance

provided on the formal grievance form. On October 31, 2013, FMCS provided the local partles the fst of seven arbitrators with thelr bios; on
December 8, 2013, the locdl parties selected Arbitrator Dr. Edward Johnsan; ‘o December 8, 2013, FCC Butner notified Arbltrator Johnson that
the parties had selected him to hear the subject case; on January 23, 201 14 Agency Repressntative Joe Powers was assigned the case; On
February 28, 2014, the Unlon notified the Agency that it had retained tegal counsel, Ms. Lillam Mendoza, Mr. Powers and Ms, Mendoza agreed
to hearing dates for August and September 2014; on-May 14, 2014, new Agency Representative, Mr. Michael Markiewicz, notified Arbitrator
Johnson that the case had been reassignad due to Mr. Powers leaving the Agency; on May 27, 2014, the Union and Agency representatives
agreed to heering dates of December 3, 4, 10 end 11, 2014; on December 8, 2014, Arbitrator Johnson calied the Union and Agency
representatives and canceled hearing dates due to his wife's medical condition.. r indicated that due to uncertainty of the current
situation he would understand Ham&ﬁrkb&atormselccted'bym parties...The Mealpmwmﬂwmxgbmommdmmmam
roster of arbitrators from FMCS and subsequently, striking and selecting the undersigned Arbltrator (Arbitrator Wiiam A. Dealy, J1.).

® The undersigned's initial contact with the parties was through an emall from the Unfon's Coungel, Ms. Lifliam Mendoza dated January 2, 2016
providing that she was representing AFGE, Local 408 In ‘the Butner Overtime case" and suggesting several pesiods of tme as hearing dates.
Following a serles of email communications with the parties and FMCS; the undarsigned received the January 5, 2015 assignment leter. The
FMCS Identified Initial contacts as: 1. Mr. Stephen R. Jones, HRM at FCC Butner, P.O. Box 1000, Butner, NC 27508 for the agency; and 2. Mr,
Anthony D. Little, Chisf Steward, AFGE Local 408, at 3212 Vetlelo Trafl, Raleigh, NC 27610 for the union.

® The 100 page document, executed on February 6, 1888, comprised of a preamble with 42 Articles, two appendices, and index and signsture

page, and, as provided In Article 42 was effective upon completion of the Unlon ratification and Agency head review, for a period of threa @)

years [March 9, 1998 — March 8, 2001] which could be mm:alynéone (1) year Incremants by mutual consent of the parties. Written notice was
y i i

14
This was important since Article 42 of the hard copy agreement provided “If neither party desired to renegotiate the ement, the paries
exsoute new signatures and date.” And, no documentation was provided that the MLA had mnmm@d as
provided In Article 42, That is, noMMnmmmmmmm_:mthmwlmmmﬁﬁﬁm 8,
2001 with new signature and date pages. The parties current Maater Agreement was executed on May 29, 2014, aiso for a perlod’of thies {3)
years [July 21, 2-14 - July 20, 2017) and can be extended in one (1) year increments by mutual consent of the parties; unless written notice Is
given by either party to the other not less than sixty (60) days but not more than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date.that #.dasired to
amend the Agraement. If neither party desires to renegotiate tha Agreement, the parties are again required to execute new signatures and date.
This agresment also eomprbesofapmambbwmlekﬁom.mappendbes. and index and signature page. A imited review of the current
agreement against the agreement In affect at the initlation of the subject grievance found saveral key provisions have been updated/changed,

including Articles 1, 2, 3, 6, 9,11, 18, and 31. Where such PReer to affect the findings of this arb ,
will take note and comment on If appropriate. changea appe @ findings of this mﬂmmhkm

® Arbitrator's record of the administrative conference...

Arbitrator: Midaaz.Secﬁonh.ofﬂrepmﬁss’MLAptwldnlnmmﬂ\ekbmmmnhawmmmmm.wmmdmmwor
mumymyvdﬂtemofﬁwemsmemwhblbhfodml-smdmscmpoﬂeh-w‘ atiche, Accordingly g the parties ptadng'
anyoﬂwmmmonmypmmhwandwe&hmaﬂu? Ms. Mendoza? reauisars. -

Ms, Mendoza:  Noslr.

Arbitrator: Mr. Maridewioz?
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Mr. Marklewkz: No.

° The Union's technical reprosentative was identified as Ms. Cheryl Danlef; and the Agency's technical representative was identified as Ms.
Ollle Harris.

¥ Asbitrator's record of the administrative conference...

Arbitrator: mmsm_dtolsswcfundecwon,|mmnsmg.dhmummmmbhmmmmnso
mammmammmmwbbymm Mycalendarhfab‘lymﬂarﬂlwouldlfhhaskﬂwpmw
mmﬂeralvkumomeMlmdayaMFMOSamtnlbm. Do the parties have any problems with this?

Ms, Mendoza: No.

Mr. Markiewicz: As long as you need.
Arbitrator: Ohy.&nwmmm&nmmedmdmaheuhg.

Arbitrator: With the exce; dﬁwmmdmupmjuswmfﬁw. aswellasmfe@onalwﬁvlﬂosﬂwtmeddwmgmyao-ﬂmym
of Fedud=w§ﬁhvémwm subject Agency aﬁwum‘m-bm-ww. I'have had no previcus contact or ralationship with any of the
specific Muhﬂ!hm; c?httnpuliashavo any concems or issues regarding myabfmbmndumamwlmﬂdhowm in

** The hearing was condusted in two sasslons, the first sesslon during the period August 4-6, 2015, during which the parties’ addressed
threshold issues; after which, the Union prasented the majority of its case in chief. However, on the third day of hearings the Agency’s counsel
came to the humsfeellmalawbymld-daymm he would not be ablo to eonﬁnuo.mfdlscusshnswmm Counsels and revisw of
calendare, it was determined to adjourn and reconvene the hearing an November 18, 2015. Said hearing was reconvened at 8:40AM,
November 18, 2015. On this day the Unlon completed its case in chief and the Agency presented Hs case. The hearing was completed and
adjoumned at 1:50PM, Wednesday, November 18, 2015.

** Bryant Court Reporting Services, Inc., recorded the proceedings andprovided both electronic and hard verslons of the transcript to the
parties and Arbitrator. 682 pages o'ftramdms. Jd

*® Transcript Vol. IV pg 146-148.,..

| .mwmammmmmmm to Arbitrator powers, as to whother the were placing any additional
mmmmmm weranot, Having sald af! Ms. Mendoza, on beha!f of the Unlon, do U fée! you've had a fair
and approptiate opportunity to mﬁwz ) ﬁ&ywmb:ﬁcmfwmbm? ¥

‘°ushouldbemdﬂmlnthekbm’atorsappokmnmaweptamleﬂerboﬁl arties were afforded the opportu to file pre-haring briefs and
only the Unlon submitted said brief by the deadfine for such submissions, # ' oppotinlty
" Arbitrator's record of the administrative conferenco...

Arbltrator: Bmdmﬂtelnfmmﬂonmmdmhwpmﬂmtﬁwmmqunmwmﬂmbmmummmmyw

*® Arbitrator's record of the administrative conference...

Asbitrator: Admnﬁly.wmmmmm:(ﬂ aeopyoftheUSDeptothnﬂeo.Fm-aleaaudPrhcm.fomluimotmn,BP-
3178.017ww|etodbyMr. NﬂhmyLHe,PmﬂdamdAFGELcmlmm%mﬂ.zm& and a memorandum from C. Elkenlaub, Regional
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Me. Mendoza;

Mr. Marklswioz:

Ms. Mendoza;
Arbsitrator:
Ms. Mendoza:

Ms. Mendoza:

Director, Mid Atiantic Reglonal Office, US Dept. of Justice, Federal Bureau of Prisons to Mr. Anthony Little, President, AFGE Local 408, dated
Sept. 20, 2013, Subject: Fermal Grisvance, which provided in m'bmmyouﬂhdycwmwmmembmlwmﬂb
tnappropriately fled®. Accordingly, are there any arbiirabilty or cther thresheid lssuee that need to be addressed? Ms. Mendoza?
EhthaMNWMWMhMmWMMwWW
authorization to challenge that directly,

Mr. Markiewloz are you, is there an arbitrabilty matter?

There are a few arbitrability matters. That will be ens of them. Whether the grievance was filed to the right office. The other will be whether
tha grisvance was filed timely under the provisions of the CBA. And the other would be whether the grievance was barred by an unfair labor
prastico that was filod out first by the Unfon over tho sémo fssus,

So the answer ls yes, there's arbitrablifty questions. As | réad the document as provided in the Unien's prehearing submissions and identified
in the parties' CBA neither Articls 31, Griovanco Procedures, nor Article 32, Arbitration, acdress issuss of arbitrabiliy. Normlly istues of
procedural arbitrebility are addressed by the aibitrator. However the pa s may also jointly suthorize an arbiirator to decids substantive
aerbiirability questions. Have the partiss discussad this matter and made any decislons on how thay want to praceed?
Nowm]gdhanbmﬂay&#h@mybgmbmmm

8o it hasn't been discussed?

No sir.

Clay. WWMWINW&WbWMMWWWMW&BMWMﬂ
then proceed with the merits of the case. Or we can hold a separate hearing. And have the hearing on erbitrability mitters firat, be bifefed,
mﬁodmmﬁnnmbukanddomwmhmmhcnhMﬂm. I'm Inclined to do the fist. Have you argus your arbitrablitly
mmmmmmm.mmhamamshewmyqumunywwummmwmum
And then we would proceed on to the merits of tho.case, VWhat do you want to do, Ms, Mendoza?
Yee.mhwmm&wbmom-ﬂmmhﬂnmmwmmamam Bearing in mind that this case was
inially scheduled for st December and the hearing had to be canceied due to the Arbitrater's wifa medical condition. 8o yea the Union is
mdybwmedmwﬁaﬁomudmhmmwm

Mr. Markiowioz: We can do the firet, since we're ail here.

* The record shows that AFGE Looal 408 filed two related Unfair Labor Practice charges with the Federal Labor Relations Authority against
mm jt u;%:sz%‘lmg Prior to filing the subject grievance; case number WA-CA-12-0513 filed April 18, 2012; and case numbey WA-CA-

WA-CA-12-0513 charged that the Agency violated 5 USC 71 16(a) sections 1, 2, 4, and 8 in that...

JM OF Undorstanding conceming
FGE Locdl 3696 and 405. The.Agency states that this
Februiiry 25, 2013 for Local 408, The Agency sent
mw»wmmnm.—m they will'no longer

2 American Federation of Govemment Employees, ALF-CIO, Local 1411 vs. Federal Labor Relations Authority, 96D F.2d 176 (1982), ’

* International Association of Machinists and Ae
Virgins, 44 FLRA 1281 (1952) a respace Workers, Lodge 39 and U.S. Department of the Navy, Naval Aviation Depat, Norfolk,
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Butner, North Carolina and the AFGE, AFL-CIO, Council of Prison Locals #33, Loca) 408 and Mr. Anthony Litie continued:

“Arﬂcllo;’ g.uo Section e, provides...” If a grievance is filed after the epplicable deadiine, the arbitrator wil decida timeliness if ralsed as a

* Sabres vs. United Brotherhood of Carpenters and Jolners, Local No. 33, 921 F.2d 396, 402, 405 (1880)

3 As the preface to both the sixth end seventh edition of Elkouri & Elkouri, How Arbitration Works provides, "How Arbitration Werks” has, since

'htdame ﬁ'::'mbm famed w:magd ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁé&”ﬁm «2&&“333‘“"" iy ﬁh&?ﬂv forms of m&% :&w&“"“ docisions.
’ ] o a n | awards, a r ) fons.

P-lumver. ususlly citations are more precise and specific then appfied here, Nevertheless, the Arbitrator takes note ofthe Agency’s reference.

¥ Citing Arbltrator/Jotnt Exhibit 4.
* Case number WA-CA-13-0636,

# Testimony of Mr. Jonathan Hemingway, Butner FCC HRM, Transcript Ve, I, pages 40-42,

% Equitable distribution of overtime, threshold determination of arbitrabliity, motion to dismiss granted as grievance was untimely filed, AFGE
Local 1242 and USP Alwater. FMCS 08-50831 (2006) (Arbitrator Fingher); Equitable distribution of worldoads, threshold determination of
arblirability, untimely filed and grievance denied. FCC Coleman and AFGE Local 506, FMCS 06-54258 (2007). (Arbitrator. Overstreet):. Merit
promotion, threshold determination of arbitrability, untimely filed and grievance denied. FTC Oklahoma City and AFGE Local 171, FMCS 08-
87010 (2009) (Arbitrator Nicholas); Assignment of temporary duties, threshold detemmination of arbitrabifity, untimely fed and grievance denied.
FCI La Tuna and AFGE Local 0083, FMCS 08-56151 (2010) (Arbitrator Hughes); Violation of Article 20 of tho-parties. Master Agreement,
threshold determination of arbitrabllity, arbitralo deficient, grievance. denled. FC| Estil) and Anthony Carter, FMCS 10-88180
(2011) (Arbitrator Oberdank); Disciptinary action, threshold datermination of arbitrabiity, faflure in invoking arbitration and grievance denied.
FCC Yazoo Clty and AFGE Local 1013, FMCS 11-5218581 (2011) (Arbitrator Bendixsen); Disciptnary action, threshold determination of
» faire to properly invoke arbitration and grievance denied. FCI Elkton and AFGE Logal 607, FMCS 10-55308 (2012).(Arbitrator
GbAEbiY, 10 tes  eio, Madts Agrerent and e ek Pay e, ol s 2% o Broshold deamingien o
wability, no unjustif or unwaranted persanne! action, no jon of the Back: ) 8 nece denled. USF tar
and AFGE Local 1242, FMCS 14-82788-A (2014) (Arbitrator Bridgewater); Violation of Asticla 28 of the parties Master Agresment, fajlure to
properly pay annual clothing allowance, threshold deternilnation of arbitrabiifly, faflure to file with proper office. and grisvance denled, FCe
Coleman and AFGE Local 508, FMCS 14-57818 (2018) (Artitrator Bendixsen); Violation of the parties Master Agreemant and memorandum of
understanding to stop vacating posts to reduce overtime, thrashold determination of arbitrabllity, faflure to praperty invake arbitration and
mvanoe dmdégl.ﬁsﬁn m:ti AFGE Local m7e..,smcs,1mv‘°($o;g)msengmm); srwﬁ.w\llo:elaﬂon of pat&::d mmw
agreem seftleme agreement, threshold determination OITabILLY, fakure to properly arbitration grievance d
AFGE Local 3979 and FC! Sheridan, FMCS 14-50342 (2016) (Arbitrator Allen),

] .
CtﬁngDep'toftheAkFom, OsdenA&'l.oglsﬂaBO&.. HElAtrFomBase. Utah, 39 FLRA 1408, 1417 (1991); US. Food & Drug Admin,
Northeast & Mid-Atiantic Reglons, 53 FLRA 1269, 1273-74 (1988); Dep't of Defense Depsndents Schools, 12 FLRA 52, 63.(1883),

a"l’hc“awem:dby"(!outrlnelslbasedt:nthe&!eatmitapartyelumldlmthaumtnl:aq;aln ovefmem:keadycontatnedlnorcmmdbyan
exlst&;g agreement...See Bureau of Prisons v. Federal Labor Relations Authority, 654 F.3d 91 (2011); AFGE, Local 225, 58 FLRA 688, 889

3 Here the Agency cites provisions found In Elkourl & Elkouri relating to the subject of management rights cited by Arbitrator Chang in his

declsion/award on a ous BOP/AFGE grievance that went to arbitration; AFGE, Local 1218 and FOC Honolulu issued January 7, 2018, b
Asbitrator Lou Chang. v y

* Hera the Agency cites another previcus BOP/AFGE griavanae the went to arbitration FMCS Case #08-01019 AFGE Coundll of Prison Locals
33 and Federal Bureau of Prisons, issued September 6, mwm&mcm;muumman. providing In part that BOP bargalning unit
emp:oyooafmmcﬂmlmﬂmomwhommtommmmmmpaidovenﬂmwhﬂaatmnmmwdwmaﬁm.

* Citing Bell v. Wotfish, 141 U.S. 520, 16 547 (1976) and Rhodes v. Chapman, 452 U.S, 337 (1881).
: scalg)ng AFGE, AFLCIO, Local 883 and Department of Justice, Federal Correctional (nstitution Sandstone, Minnesota, 30 FLRA 497, 500-01

3 Clting Internationa) Plate Printers, Dle Stampers, and Engravers Union of North America, AFL-CIO, Local 2 and Department of the Treasury,
Bureau of Engraving and Printing, Washington, D.C., 25 FLRA 113, 144-48 (1887) (Provision 35). ”
)

Citing American Federation of Govemment Employees, Local 1823 and U.S, rtment of Health and Human Services, H Ca
Financing Administration, Baltimore, Marytand, 44 FLRA 1405, 1465-68»(1982)\(Pmpm7). : sakh Care

%
Citing Natlonal Education Assoclation, Overseas Education Association, Lawel Bay Teachers Association and US, Department of Defense,
Department of Defense Domestio Schools, Laurel Bay Dependents Schools, Laure} Bay, South Carofina, 51 FLRA 733, 730 (1898).

&0
Citing American Federation of Government Employees, Local 3157 and US. Department Agricutture, Federal Grain nspection Servics
FLRA 1570, 1596 (1892). P v o Federal Grain | onice, 44

“' Chting Namtgnal Assoclation of Agricutture Employees and US, Department of Agricuitire Animal and Piant Health Inspector, Service Pilant

Quarantine, 81 FLRA 843 (1888), review denled, Natlonal Assoclation of cuitre Employses v..FL No.. "1106. .C. Cir.
Dee, il.?. &ggFﬁ)ﬁA Anmslg:emﬂon a/Government Employees, AFL-CIO, Locsalt628 unAdcgbpﬂﬁncm of the Nnv‘;."g?vam:gwm%ceam
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Butner, North Carolina end the AFGE, AFL-CIO. Cotnail of Prison Locale %33, Local 408 and Mr. Anthony Litle continuad;

“ Citing DODDS, Pac. Region and Overseas Educ, Ass 'n, 31 FLRA 305, 312-13 (1988).

“ThedhdmwmlnﬁlahdbyagievammedbyAFGELocd%onJanuety12.2008.andtnvowedadombymamgmbmdgpau
practice. Foflowing negotiations and mediation by eh parties, on April 19, 2010, a setilement agreement wes signed by the parties.
Subsequently, on September 17, mio._amndgmvamowsaﬂedbeoamemmmyinmhmaMaehaweregardiqgﬂpaama

Arbirator Barbara J. Wood ~ FMCS Case #1-61176 Issued July 23, 2012 (Cited In the sublect case at heartng and in Agency's post-iearing
zmzs); excoptions folled - 67 FLRA 108, AFGE, Local 405 vs. U.S. DOJ, BOP, FCC Butner decision May 19, 2014,

“ Citing U.S. Department of Veterans Affalre, Medical Center, North Chleago, lliinols and American Federation of Government Employees,
Local 2107, 52 FLRA 387, 392 (1696). '

“ Citing Depertment of Health and Human Services and AFGE Locsl 1668 (July 2000) 56 FLRA 83.

“® As of 2012 the Federal Correctional C ex at Butner, NC, was comprised of four institutions designated as — Fedaral Comectional
institution One (FCI-1), Federal cmcﬁomci%n Two (FCI-2), the Low Security Correctional Institution (LSCI), and the Federal Medical
Center (FMC). The Complex was headed by a Warden, who at the time was Warden Sarahi Revells, and each institution was headed by a
subordinate Warden - Whie the Ce x Warden; Warden Revelis served-also as:thie Warden of thie Fedéral Madlcal Center; Wamgd Tracy
Johns was the deslgnated Warden for FCI-1 and the LSCI; and Warden Angela Dunbar was the designated Wardan for FCI2. Also, 850f2012
there were four AFGE Locals within the Complex ~ Local 408's inatitution coverage was generafly the LSCI; Local 408's (rmmomloomge
generally was the FMC and FCI-2; Local 3896's institutional coverage was.generafly FCH-1; and Locdl 3546 represented Central Office/Ré:

Raleigh CCM activities.. This Is because; each Local also regresented employses assigned toMworking in specific operationa! division or
mwm.mmwmewmmm—mmmmwm:mmmmu folowing divislonalfunctional
aclivitisa - Recreation/Education, UNICOR, Laundry, Food Services, Warehousa, Trust'Fund; and R & D within. all foor Ingtitutions; as'well:as
Correctional Sarvicas and Case- Managere/Counsiore/Secretares (th LSCH); Local 408 represented employees: asslgmdfbﬂm followilng
divislonsifunctional activities — Comectional Sarvices (n FMC and FCl2), Medical (In afl four Instititions), Case
ot et S yets St it g B . o) and Plyagy Snles (0 .oy

o; ‘ e ‘employees assignedto the: g divisiona! hal ectivities — , and' ervices: |

all four'bwﬁnmom.m as, memma. Case Managers/Couliselors/Secretaries, and Psychology Services-(in FCI1); and'Local
3548 represented Gentral Office/Re-Entry/Raleigh CCM (in af four inatititions). ‘

(it should be noted that the Arbitrator was provided a decumented explaining who the Complax Werden and tha individual tnatitutional Wardens
wera et varlous points of ime essoclated with the subject grievance and there were difference beiween the two -summartes-due to. vcant
Warden positions and uncertalnty ds'to whio wis acting @t any given pohrit in time..,However, the consensusis that Sareh Revslls servediasthe
Complex and FMC Wardsn from 2009 through 2012 and that Cralg Apker seived as Complex and FMC Wardén from 2013 through 2014 and
Kenneth Atkinson was the Complex and FMC Warden as of the date of the hearing In the subject case.]

“ Arbitrator/doint Exhibit, AlJ-3.

“ It should be noted that the Memorandum of Understanding addressed by the FLRA @pproved Settisment Agreament of February 25, 2013,
and signed by Local 408 and FGC offictals the same day was identified as being between the Council-of Pricon Locals, Local'408 (a8'the:Uriion)
and the Federal Comectional Complex, Butner, NC (as the Agenay).

“ Agency/Employer Exhibit, E-1.

® The term ‘repudiation” is defined in Black's Law Dictianary as rejection; disclalmer; renunciation. The rejection or refusal of an offered or
avallable right or privilege, or of a duty or relation...Repudiation of a contract means refusal to perform duty or obligation owed to other party.
SmhOonslﬁslnMMBNMW‘WwMDa}&@-MMMhnm@mbperformfdeewmmﬁloﬁim,

* Warden Craig Apker
%2 Citing Elkouri & Etkouri, How Arbitration Works, 6" Ed; At pages 218-219.

% Article 31, Seetion 1, provides "when filing a grlevance, the grievance will be filed with the Chlef Executive Officer of an Instituion/fac lity, if

the gt!gvnmo pertains to the action of an individual for which the: Chief Executive Officer of the institution/faciily has disciplinary
over....

84 Testimony of Mr. Jonathan Hemingway, Butner FCG-HRM, Transcript Vol, I, pages 43-57, »
% Article 31, Section 12, provides "when filing a grievance agalnst the Chief Executive Ofﬁcerofap klmn[faqi!uy,_or when fiiing a grisvance

against the actions of any manager or supervisor who-is not employed-at'the grievants ) Wil B S50 Wit
appropiiate Regional Direttor. * supe employed-atithe grievant's tnstitution/faciity, the-gilévance will:be fl5d with the

%8 USC §7103 (a)(2) defines “employee” to maan an individual—
(A) employed [n an agency; or
(B) whass employment in an ?n?eyhaa ceased because of any unfalr labor prectice under section 7116 of this title and who has not

obtained any cther regular and substantiatly equivalent employme as determined under regulatio by the Federil Lia
Relations Authority; but does not Includow. . under regulations prescribed by the Fedetl Lsbor

® ma%ncrmd&enwmeumedMsmompbsa on outside the United States;
((2) a member of the uniformed s POSR!

a supervisor or'a management offietaf;
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Butner, North Carolina and the AFGE, AFL-CIO, Councll of Prison Locals #33, Local 408 and Mr. Anthony Litfle continued:

(v) an officer or employee in the Forelgn Service of the United States employed in the Department of State, the Intemational
Communication Agency, the Agency for International Development, the Department of Agricufture, or the Department of

Commarce; or
(v) any person who participates in a strike in violation of section 7311 of this titie;
" Union Exhibit, U-5.
= Union Exhibit, U8,
% Asbitratoriloint Exhiblt, AlJ-2.

* Testimony by Mr. Morris Diilard, Past President, AFGE, Local 408, Vol. 1, pgs. 71-91.
' Unlon Exhiblt, U-2,

* Union Exhibit, U-3.

* Citing Customs Service, 18 FLRA, 85 FLRR 1-1 1486.

*! Ctting Letterkenny Army Depot, 34 FLRA 606, 80 FLRR 1-1126.

% Citing U.S. Departmant.of the Alr Force, Headquarters, Alr Force Loglstics Command, Wright-Patterson Alr Force Base, Ohio, 38.FLRA 524,
531 (1880)("Wright-Patterson")

 Citing Division of Military and Naval Affalrs, State of New York; 7 FLRA 321, 338 (1981); and U.8 Department of Justice, Executive Office for
Immigration Review and AFGE Local 286, 61 FLRA page 468 (2005).

% Testimony of Mr. Shelf Andarson, Transcript Vol, Iif, pgs. 33-68.
% Union Exhibits, U-15-19 and 30-33,

® § USC 8596
™ Citing AFGE Local 8680 and Bureay of Prisons 89 FLRA 21 (2015) Exhibit 23 of the Unions post-hearing brief,
n Citing Defenss Finance and Accounting Service, 104 LRP 45548, 60 FLRA 281 (2004). Exhibit 24 of the Unlon's pest-hearing brief.

™ The concept of party status was ined in ent of the , Norfolk Naval Shipyard, 80 FLRR 1-1148, 34 FLRA 725
(1880), Imﬁpt‘ zsm? post-hearing bliet]mwhere the Flmumbmwbmhngm from the U.S. Court of Appeals, Federa) Cirouit sald that
determining who prevails Is essentlally “a totafing up of who won and who lost”

™ Citing General Services Administration, 105 LRP 31780, 61 FLRA €8 (2005). Exhibit 26, Union's post-hearing brief.
7 Citing Denver VA Medical Center, 94 FLRR 1-1145, 48 FLRA 1403 (1894). Exhibit 27, Union's post-hearing bilef.

™ Whie no clear defineation or explanation of this local agent/affiiate relationship was provided by the parties, either in testimony or through
documantation; ths Arbitrator has choaen to follow and apply the AFGE organizational and representational relationship as identified and usediin
FLRA case materials ag explainad/used by the FLRA Gffice of Administrative Law Judges...For example ses under findings [n U.S. Department

of Justice, Bureau of Prisons, U.S, Medical Center for Federal- Prisoners, Springfleld, Missouri and American Federation' of Government
Employees, AFL-CIO, Local 1812, Case No. DE-CA-80741 datod August 19, 1989,

™ Unlon Exhiblt, U-6 and 7.
7 Testimony of Mr. Monis Dillard, Vol |, pgs 71-93.

™ Grisvance fisd by Local 405 on January 12, 2000, by VP Local 405 Willlam Boseman; violatien of Federal Prison Directive, Executive Order,
Statute, HR Manual, Master Agreement, Back Pay Act...On:December 4, 2008, Local 405 became aware of a memorandum from Acting AW of
UNICOR, Rogers. The memorandum stated thst the Bargalning. unit employees In UNICOR may not consider themselves'as- quatified
employees if the avallable overtime shift overtaps thelr regular UNICOR shift. The Union requested to bargain over this due to the fact that it is a
mmwmnmmmmdonelnall cther departments. Hlsmmnomndmnabovbmmsusc. Master Agreement NS THE
Human Resources Manual. The Master Agreement states that, “all employees shall be treated the same. in &l aspects.of personnel
managemsnt." The Unlon met with A, Boeler, Complex Warden, at FCC Butner to try to Informally resolve this issue. Warden Beoler informed
his managers via emalil that this Is a past practice and that It didn't violate anypayreght:taucn Unlon President Jullus Pylas and Unlon Vice
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® Filed by Local 405 VP Willlam Boseman for violation of Back Pay Act, § USC §8596(b)(1)(A). Program Statament 3000.03, Master Agreement
Asticle 6, Section b2 and 8, FLSA...On August 15, 2010 the agency implemented a change regarding the established past practice of staff being
dllowed to work overtime that confiicts and/or overiaps with thelr primary shift...This change was implemented without negotiating with Local
405, the sole and exclusive represantative of its bargaining unit...This-change was only applicable to bargalning unit members of Local 405 and
not bargalning unit members throughout the entire complex at Butner...It involves excluding or restricting members of one group from
opportunities that are available to another group which is in viclation of the GBA...See Arbitrater Barbara J. Woods' Declsion/Award dtd July 23,
2012 and 67 FLRA 108 AFGE, Council of Prison Locals, Local 405 and USDOJ, FBOP, FCC Butner did May 19, 2014,

* Unlon Exhiblt, U-2...Memorandum of Understanding, Counci of Prisons, Local 408 and FCC Butner, Overtime Hiring Procedures, Utilization
of Conectional Services Roster Program, FCI-2and FMC, executed November 4, 2010, for Agency Sara Revell, Complex/FMC Warden; D.R.
Stevens, Warden FCI-2 and Tracy Johns, Warden FCL-1/LSCI; for Union Morris Diflard, President,

2 Union Exhibit, U-3...Memorandum of Understanding, AFGE, Council of Prisons Local 33, Locals 3688, 405, and 408 and FCC Butner,
pertaining to inmates assigned to FCI1 and LSCI and transfer for medical to FMC and outside Hosplta) Coverage, executed Decomber 13,
2011, for FCC Butner, Tracy Johns, Warden FCULSCI, for Unions officers from each Local.

¥ Unlon Exhibit, U-9 and 10.

% Union Exhibit, U-14...ULP fed by Local 408 charging Complex Warden and management with bad faith bargalning and no intentions of
reaching agreement with Union on Local 408's MOU.,

® Arbitrator/Joint Exhibit, A%J-3...Closure of FLRA ULP Case Numbar WA-CA-12:0513...Sattlement Agre provided — The undersigned
Agency and the undersigned Charging Party In sattiement of the above matter, and subject to the approval of the Ragiicnal Difector on‘behalf of
the Federal Labor Relations Authority, HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: ACTION TO BE TAKEN: The Agency agrees to-execute and henor the
Parties’ Memaorandum of Underitanding on Overtime:Hiring' Procedures:and Utilization of Comectional Setvices Roster Program. POSTING OF
NOTICE: The Agency will post copies of the Notice to All Employees, attached hereto and made a part herect, in consplcuous:places at the
Bureau of Prisons — Federal Correctional Complex Butner, North Carolina where employees represented by AFGE, Local 408 werk, including all
bulletin boards and other places whese notices to employees are customarily posted; for a period of at least-thifty (30) days.from the-date of
posting. The Notice, when posted will be signed by Craig Apker, Complex Warden. ELECTRIC POSTING OF NOTICE: The Agency wid email
a copy of the NﬁmmmﬁmmsmemphymmmsenhdbyAFGE.Looalm\vmnmmydaysofoxewﬁmofm~%ment
COMPLIANCE WITH NOTICE: The Agency wiil comply with all the tarms and provisions of the Notice. REFUSAL TO ISSUE COMPLAINT: In
the event the Charging Party fails or refuses to become a party to the Agreement, and if the Reglonal Director concludes that it will effectuate
the policles of the Statute, she shall decline to issue a commmuwemandmwmnummnmwmmmmu
Regional Director. A review of such action may-be cobtained: pursuant to Section 2433.11© and (d) of the Autliority's Reguldtions: This
Agreement s contingent upon the General Counsel sustaining the Reglonal Director's action in the event of an appeal. Approval of
Agreement by the Reglonal Director shall constitute a ‘withdrawal of any. Complaint(s) and Notice of Hearing heretofore. issued: in-the-case.
PERFORMANCE: Performance by the Agency of the terms and provisions of the Agreement shall commence Immediately after the Agreement
Is approved by the Regional Director or In the event the Charging Party does not enter into the Agreement, performance: shall commence
Immediately upon recelpt by. the Agency of advice that no appeal has-been filed or that the General. Counsel has susitained.tfie: Reglonal
Director. NOTIFICATION OF COMPLIANGE: The Agency will notify the Regional-Director in writing what eteps the Agency has taken:to'comply
herewith. Such notification shall be mado within fifteen (15)days, arid again after sixty (80) days, &cmmeamof&eapmwdofmbmmem.
or In the event the Charging Panydoasnotemmmmaﬂmﬂm:meelptcfnoﬁuthutnoappealtm‘bemﬂedorﬁut-meemml
: AGREEMENT: upon compliance with the terms

e e D L e i e S e
Dunbar, Warden FGH2; Tracy Johns, Werden FCI-1 & LSGI; Anthony Lito. F t, Local 408, ' '

% Union Exhibit, U-11.

* Union Exhibit, U-12.

83

Agency Exhibit, A/E-1...ULP Charge Number WA-CA-13-0836 filed by AFGE Looal 408, Antho: Little, President against FCC B Craig
Apker, Complax Warden...Violation of § USC 7118(a)(1, §, 7, & 8) references pravious ULP al'l"c'ly FLRA approved settiement. m'mand
exacution of MOU...On July 3, 2013, Agency repudiated and.violated settement agreement by signing new MOU wmgmﬂﬁna
m% Utilization of Correctional Services Roster Program.with AFGE ‘Locals m«m.m...mdea.mmm’mﬁﬁm and
% Amitrator/Joint, Exhibit, AL-7.
% Union Exhibit, U-16.
b Arbitrator/Joint, Exhibit, All-4.
® Asitrator/doint, Exhibit, A5,

* Arbitrator/Joint Exhibit, A8,

o4
Agency/Employer Exhiblt, A/E-1...FLRA letter to Anthony Litte, President, AFGE Looal 408, from Barbara Kraft, Regional Director
n Reglanal Office, FLRA, subject USDOJ, FBOP, FCG Butner and AFGE Local 408 ULP. _The charge as clarified by the Investigation
alleges that the Agency repudiated the settiement agreement in case number WA-CA-12-0513, thereby violating section 7116(a){1) and
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Butner, Nerth Carclina and the AFGE, AFL-CIO, Council of Prison Locals #33, Local 408 and Mr. Anthony LEtle centinved:

resulting in a complex-wide agreement...Iiterpretation of the complex-wide agreement, and its relationship to the March 2012 MOU, are matters
for an arbitrator...Under thess circumstances, | have determined that the Agency’s conduct did not clearly and patently breach the March 2012

* Union Extibit, U-13...Coples of FCC Butner LMR Mesting minutes for LMR meetings during the period August 28, 2013 through July 8, 2015,

% Union Exhibit, U-7...See Endnote 77 above...Also, Agenoy referenced decision by Asbitrator Barbara Wood issued July 12, 2012, in its post-
hearing brief, exhibit 23.

"wwmus, pmphreahgmeCourtlnSteeMotkmsvs.EnterpﬂseWheel.
% 1d. At9-34.

* Alr Forcs, Oklahoma City, ALC, Tinker AFB and AFGE Local 196, ARBIHS04450 (Quinn, 1680) per Hadley, Guide to Federal Sector Labor
Arbltration 5-1486. .

™ (d, At9-20, paraphrasing Gamett, Contract Interpretations.
' Unlon Exhibi, U-12,

' See U.S, Department of Labor, Washington, D.C. and American Fedoration of Government Employees, Local 12, 59 FLRA 21 (2003) where
the Authority held thet a ULP charge alleging a statutory violation does not bar, under §7116(d), a.subsequent grievance alleging a contract
violation; and that the Authority has drawn a clear distinetion between legal theories supporting allegations of statutory violations and‘aﬂagaﬁo
of contract violations, finding that the theorias are not substantlally similar for the purposes ¢f §7116(d). See alao, AFGE, Local 2086 and U.S,
Department of the Air Force, 20 Space Control Squadron Detachment 1, Dahigren Naval Support Faciity, VA 67 FLRA 8 (2012); IAMASW and
Navy, Naval Aviation Depot, Norloti;, VA 44 FLRA 109 (1892);.U.S' Nuolear ‘Regiitatory. Commissign and NTEU 67 FLRA 121 (2014); U.S.
Department of Justice, Federa) Bureau of Prisons, Metropolitan: Correctionaj Center, New York, New York and AFGE, Council of Prison Locals
%33, Local 3148 67 FLRA 117 (2014); and U.S, Department of Justion, Federal Bureau of Prisons and AFGE, Local 3935 68 FLRA.125.(2016),
Further, while both the two ULPs and the subject grievance alleged vication' of Federsl-statutes, the Arbitrator finds the legal theory and dutles
under SUSC 7116 are not the same as thase under 5 USC 5598,

'™ Cites and provides coples as attachments to post-hearing brief: at £-8, AFGE Local1242 and USP Atwater, FMCS 06-50931 (2006)
(Arbitrator Fincher providing strict application of the sublect -agreament); at E-7, FCC Coleman and AFGE Local 508, FMCS 08-84258.(2007)
r Overstrest upholding untimely fiing); at E-8, FTC Oklahoma Cily and AFGE Locai1 71, FMCS 08-57010 (2009) (Arbitrator Nichotas
upholding untimely filng); at E-§, FCI La Tuna and AFGE Local 0083, FMCS 08-88151 (2010) (Arbitrator Hughes upholding untimely fiing); at
E-10, FC! Estill and Anthony Carter; FMCS 10-85189 (2011) (Arbitrator Oberdank upholds timely filing based on continutng vielation,
denied for untimely and specific notification of intend to-arbltrate); at E-11, FCC Yazoo Clly end AFGE Local?013, FMCS 11-5218581 (2011)
(Arbitrator Bendixsen discussing previous BOP m&amndechhmmdmamuma violation, but in subjoct case upholding untimely filing);
at E-12, FC/ Elkton and AFGE Local807, FMCS 10-55306-8 (2012) (Arbitrator Qrando, Jr.); USP Atwater and AFGE Local1242, FMCS 14-
§2758-A(2014) (Arbitrator Bridgewater upholding fafiure fo lnvoke arbitration comectly): at E-13, FCC Coleman and AFGE Local 506, FMCS 14-
S e T R e L
i and at E-14, FC ' : : Arbitrator. n); - and FCI Sheridan, FMC
14-50342-6 (2016) (Arbltrator Allen up holding filing atwrang level). - o o

*% Union Exhibk, U-16, emalls from Joyce Stone, subject glitch in the system,
' Elkouri & Etkour, 7" Edition, at 0-13, 918, and 9-21.
' (4. At 8-102-103.

'® Arbitrator/Join Exhibt, AlJ-3 AFGE Local 408's FLRA approved MOU signed /effective February 25, 2013...

COUNCIL OF PRISONS LOCALS, LOCAL 408 (UNION)
FEDERAL CORRECTIONAL COMPLEX, BUTNER, NC (AGENCY)

SUBJECT: Overtime Hiring Procedures
Utiizatien of Comrectional Services Roater Program

FCI-2/FMC will utitize the latest verslon of the Correctional Services Roster Program, with overtime capabliites.
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Butner, North Caralina and the AFGE, AFL-ClO, Council of Prison Locals #33, Local 433 and Mr. Anthany Litle continued:

FMC Bargaining Unit staff will be allowsd to fcrovetﬂm!’owmoﬂﬂrequmwmﬁwﬂmlmtarlspostadm(a)mhpdortohbasmmuwfm
quarter. Tho %WWWMWI#MMncmmWM and Non-Correctional Services staff will all be raferred to es
Correctiona! Workers for the purpose of this MOU.,

mmmswcmmmmmm-mmonar.'mmr.'mrmw.ummmmmwwmwm

ASSIGING “REGULAR" OVERTIME:

Staft will ba granted/assignad avertime according to their order on the Correctional Services Roster Program. When overtime Is assigned or refused, staff's name will
rotate to the bottom of the cvertime list. If no contact is made to tho first staff member, a “No Contact (NC)" will be noted and move on to the next staff momber's
name. Staff members who are *“No Contact (NC)® will maintain the original place on the fist. If ovartima assignment is canceled for whatever reason, assigned stalfe
name Wi be reinstated to their original place on tha list prior to the canceled assignment:

wmnovetttmobmdbyumﬁmwerM(Mmmmmwmmdckmmdmnawkmmmmmmmr
should be noted as “Refused” on the Program Roster and the staffs name shall ke rotated to the buttom of the [ist by the tims of Refusal/Canceliation (Le. staff
requested sick leave at 10:05 a.m., (Ciavent Datg) or Evaning Watch. StafPs name will be rotated to the bottom cf the fist at 10:08 a.m. (Cusrent Dafe).

being notified a steff member mmammmmcmmsmmpmlimmmms the-Lieutenants
%nmmmmmummﬂm Correctional Sarvices Rester Program end reass!gn the vacated overtime post at the eartiest opportunity.

ASSIGNING 'MANDATORY' OGVERTIME;

Correctional Services Roster Program Administrators (LTs) will utilize the Computerized Mandatory List when assigning etaff Mandatory Overtime. Staff who have
nat been relisved within 16 minutes of the end of their shift will be credited for 2 Mandatory Overtime on the Compitarized Mandatory List with the exception of
VMWBMM&&MEMMGWRM),W!&mth. ‘Continuance of Shift" if their cumrent dutios will extend past their curent Datly
W@mwmm“ﬁncmww for sssignment. However, affacted staff wifl bo credited for a Mandatory Overtime on the

NOTE: “Mandatory” Overimo and *Regular” Overtime are ot the eame, Staff that are placed:on “Mendatory” Overtime will be rotated to the bottom of the
commuedmmmnmvar.ﬁnmwacoonwcmm&wmRmhw&bmmm(mmmhhhmmmm
mwgnmym wmmtad) “Mandatory” Overtime will be assigned to pricr shift Comrectional Officers. (Le. Morming Watch assigned to Day

NOTE: Staff will erdinarily not be assignad "Mandatory® ovartime the da; to Schoaduled Leave or Day Off, uniess there Is an institution all
staff to remain on post or at the [natitution, or all other options have m."fm OMWMWW

EMERGENCY MEDICAL TRIPS AND *LIST EXEMPT® PROCEDURES:

In the evant of Emergency Medical Trips going out late in the sh i3 not a uate time to esaign avertme using tha above estabished procedures,
T A e e e i S o B e R ey S el
y usoqL . o fil fol ‘
Emmyfmdmuus'wnm.mmhﬂuwmw ‘MAN must be filied utiizing the Roster Program). )

Any Overtime that will excoeed sixteen (16) houre of intarfsres with stafPs rogular shift will bo a *Shilt Confiict”. Staff with a "Shift Confliot” status wil} malntain the
original place an the list.

Exhausted Overtime Lists:

Tmmuammpmmammnmmmomm non-bargal mﬂﬂthecompubdudw:;al overtima roster is usbd
Mmmmﬂmuﬂbmommmanmﬂmpw:ﬂﬂﬂwuﬁ?nYa e ino uha

Ervors in Hiing:

The Unlon and Management agree mmmbmmwm\mhmmmmm Boefare filing a formal grievance, the U
Managemant agree to try to informally rescive resolva thoss inatances in the following manner; s rion &nd

~Skipped empioyses wil ba provided the oppartuniy to work overtime, of within a 21

wmw-)wmmmwmmwamum&ﬁ%am' e 0 1 Oppiane o o epoyte dfthe sip.
m,..u"'“",,"w cther m"'b“"m““"m""““m m mbm:’“ nmn. h%:m w on “:a d:yy@::.u’m ovartime ‘ng not be countad against the ‘skipped”
"skippad employee refusos the pest essignad n the dayidate welectod, the *skiFpad employse's opportunty fs consideret mact T oTal Rosclution.” If the

Effscts on Other MOUs,

This MOU suparsadas al
wlmwmmm:;mwmmmwmmmw 10cl 403. Any new negatiations concerming the procedures for overtime

imudnnyismadmmuama&dmMou,moAaamyandLmlﬂugnotommmﬂmnmwmchyadmaum
For the Unlon

{(Signed 02/25/2013/
Presgident
Mmbggaﬂ. Anthony Little

owinKirton, 1% Vico Prosident

ocy John FraicBima, Vs
Warden FCH1 & LSC 1 27 Vice President
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Butner, North CamumandﬂwAFGE. AFL-CIO, Council of Prison Locals #33, Local 408 and Mr. Anthony Little continued:

"® Arbitrator/Joint Exhibit, AlJ-2 and 9...
The Preambis of the parties' MA providas, in pertinent part:

: -end.mommdummcﬂng by-both.parties 88 may be agreed mhemummm 1o time,
together consftuts a collective agreoment between the.Agsnoy snd.the. Unlon.” [Emphasls added...Nate: the Preambis of the. lateat
agreement has exactly the same wording]

Wei-Rmmonpmﬁuhpaﬁnemm
“ Section a.

States Code (USC),
g:.ﬁm unit, es the Unien

mz-mmummnmum

"Monf.mmnmmammmw«mmammwmmammmlth
mwwmmmmmwmm,mmnmmumammmgwmmu
X i 5 28 10 B : 1 O0TNNS wWill BROUATSA IO -

suspense dates for reaponses or comective ect. The actual precedirme 10r Joce! tahor manage
[Emphasis added... Note: no changs in this wording between the two agresments]

Asticle 3 - Goveming Regulations:

2.over any Agency issuance derived or gensrated ot the local

0'local Linlon Pregldernt will be no iifind npmuedabcw.mmg
ticy...” [Emphatis eckiod...Nota: no change n this Wi oLl

conditions of employment, th -Employer and the

Wm;umwm»
-il- 321 SN :.L", .;;: l'. I IS .

provids. expediticus

.11 SCCOMISNCo with

iho provigions of this agraement
Articie 7 - Rights of the Unian:

“Section a. Thare will bo no restraint, interforence, coercion, or discrimination agatnst any employes...cr upon .
tprosentatives LRRGL 0l 1he Unian on behalf of an- mynormof:emplm [n

' As explalned In the beginning of this decision and Mumemeq’ earler In the Endnotes, the record contains a g} ned/date of the Master
Agreement between the Federal Bureau of Prisons and Gouncil of Prison Locals, Amesican Federation demmm%m Emplo;:g for the period
March 9, 1888 - March 8, 2001, executed Fabruary 8, 1898 (Arbitrator, Exhibit, AN-3), as well as, a signed/date copy of the Master
M%1mg;:#m Bmua;ﬁg%?gd(mca;w%Ammﬂﬂ Federation ofGovermnamHSmployna for the period

' - 3 » executed May 29, 2 Arbitratory, Exhibit,. e pfﬁnuyagreememapptm e during the inajoring of
the gri i agresment which the parties gt ed ! for the Asbit pleir4

discussion, analysls, and findings, where altention is placed on contract provisions the discussion, analysis, and findings wil concentrats on the

first agreement; howaver, the A has roviewed and compared both am andwhmﬂzmtsadgdﬁmdﬂmlnﬂ\
provlsbmofﬁwhvoacmm.nmﬂonaandcbsemﬂommlgmbem.m e °
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Butner, North Carelina and the AFGE, AFL-CIO, Council of Prigan Locals #33, Loca! 408 and Mr, Antheny Little continued:

" This characterization/recognition designation Is not original but the findings of the FLRA Office of Administrative Judges as expressed In
several different decisions: see U.S. Department of Justice, Bureau of Prigons, U.S. Medical Center for Fedsrel Prisoners, Springfield, Misscurl
and American Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO, Local 1612, Case Number DE-CA-80741, August 19, 1888; and US.
Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Prisons, Faderal Correctional Institution, Sheridan, Oregon and AFGE, Local 3979, Case No. SF-CA-
11-0807, September 30, 2014.

"2 See Customs Service, 18 FLRA 1, 85 FLRR 1-1 146; Letterkenny Army Depot, 34 FLRA 608, 80 FLRR 1-1128; NTEU, Chapter 103 and U.S.
Department of Homeland Seousity, U.S. Customs and Border Protection, Port of Long Beach, Long Beach, California 67 FLRA 34 (2013; U.S.
Department of Defense, Defense Logistics Agancy and AFGE, Local-916.66 FLRA 12 (2011); U.S. Department of Veterans ‘Affairs, Northern
Arizona VA Health Care System, Prescott, Arizona and AFGE, Local 2401 66 FLRA 175 (2012; and AFGE, AFL-CIO, Council of Piisons Locals,
Local B:.‘Isz‘!}‘d US. DOJ, FBOP, Federal Detention Center, Miaml, FL FMCS Case No. 11-62732-3 decided September 7, 2012 by Arbitrator

" See AFGE, Council of Prison Locals 33, Local 3890 and U.S. Department of Justios, Federal Bureay of Prisons, Federal Correctional
Institution, Miam, Florida 69 FLRA 15 (2018); U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Prisons; Federal Com: ‘Institution; Sheridan,
Oregon and AFGE, Local 3979, Case No. SF-CA-11-0607, September 30, 2014; and U.S. Department of Justice, Fedaral Bureau of Prisons,
Federal Corvectional Institution, Oxford, Wisconsin and AFGE, Local 3485, Case No. CH-CA-1 2-0403, December 19, 2014,

' See MA, Atticle 4, Section b Which provides..."Om matters which are not covered in supplemental agreements at the local level, il wiitten
bensfits, or practices and understandings between the parties implementing this agreement, which are negotieble, shall not be changed unless
agread to in writing by the parties; also, AFGE, AFL-CIO, Lacal 1681 and Department of Justice, Bureay of Prisons, Federal.Comectional
Institution, Danbury, Connecticut 2 FLRA 36 : :

''® See AFGE, Local 1592, 64 FLRA 851, 881-62 (2010).

"% 5 USC 8598

" Citing AFGE Local 5680 and Bureau of Prisons 69 FLRA 21 (2015) Exhibit 23 of the Unlons post-hearing briof,

*'® Citing Defense Finance and Accounting Service, 104 LRP 45548, 60 FLRA 281 (2004). Exhibit 24 of the Union's post-hearing brief,

''® The concept of prevalling party status was explained in Dapamiuem of the Navy, Norfolk Naval Shipyard, 90 FLRR 1-1148, 34 FLRA 725

(1980), [Exhibit 25, Union's posthearing brief] where the FLRA, borrowing language from the U.S. Gourf of Appeals, Fedoral, Chrout said
who prevails ia essentiaily "a totaling.up of who won and who lost* - that

'® Citing General Services Administration, 105 LRP 31780, 61 FLRA 68 (20085). Exhibit 28, Union's post-hearing brief,

2! Citing Denver VA Medical Center, 84 FLRR 1-1145, 49 FLRA 1403 (1694). Exhibit27, Union's post-hearing brief,

'2 Testimony of Mr, Eric Young, President of the CouncH of Prigon Locals, Vol. IV, pgs 26-70.

3 8e0 MA, Article 9, Section a 1 which provides in part °,..it is understood that focat lemental agresments wilj fr same

the MasterAaregmem. except as nated in a(2)...tf_ﬁa-MMr~Agnament’arﬁfa is eutem beyond the schaduled M ::t:'f:tany rm

g«;elp:tppleme:;atlmmemm wmaab:remmgzﬂzksmmmu mmht}‘ﬂte msm&bmmm Is in conflict with
visions 7 Master Agreem : , regulations, or @ parties at the ‘level may mutuatly elect to

execute new signatures and dates, if neither party desires to renegotiate the loca) supplemental agreement® § .8. Botder Patro|

Livermare Sector, Dubtn, Califomfa and AFGE, Nafforial Border Patrol Council, Local 2730, AFL-cro?é FLRA '50‘(‘2332‘)‘? o US: B

"‘Bkouﬁ&&?kauri, 7" Edition, at 7-22 FN 103,
b Id at 7-46-47 FN210.

" The Amitrator fully understa nds this declslon and award ma

n A y have impact on management's relations with the other AFGE Locals
mpresenﬁngBuahmmwhwm&nsuamnevmm.mamnemmmthh lmasumneoemy (
contractual refationship and obligations with AFGE Looal 408 and the BUEs lnemwnﬁmwwmi 8, FCH-; mu?Fﬂgh wholo fe

*” Example of the kind of report the parties are to provide the Arbitratar,..
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